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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The consolidated financial statements of X-Cat Resources Lid. are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. The consolidated financiai statements are prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.and reflect management's best estimates and
judgment based on information currently available.

Management has developed and maintains a system of internal controls to ensure that the
Company's assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorized and properly recorded and
financial information is reliable.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring management fulfills its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal control through an audit committee, which is comprised entirely of
non-management directors. The Audit Committee reviews the results of the audit and the annual
consolidated financial statements prior to their submission to the Board of Directors for approval.

These consolidated financial statements have been audited by Smythe Ratcliffe LLP, Charlered

Accountants, and their report outlines the scope of their examination and gives their opinion on
the consolidated financia! statements. ' ' '

“Shawn Kennedy”

Shawn Kennedy
President

Vancouver, British Columbia
June 17, 2008



SmytheRatcliffe

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF X-CAL RESOURCES LTD.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of X-Cal Resources Ltd. as at March 31, 2008 and
2007 and the consolidated statements of operations, cash flows and shareholders’ equity for the years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the Company as at March 31, 2008 and 2007 and the results of its operations, its cash flows

and changes in shareholders’ equity for the years then ended in accordance wnth Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles. :

“Smythe Ratcliffe LLP” (signed)

Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, British Columbia
“June 6, 2008, except as to note 14
which is as of June 17, 2008.

7t Floor, Marine Building Fax: 604.688.4675 A Member of pKFInternationat
355 Burrard Street, Vancouver, BC Telephone: 604.687.1231
Canada voC 2G38 Web: SmytheRatcliffe.com



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Consolidated Balance Sheets (Note 1)

March 31
2008 2007
Assets
Current c
Cash and cash equivalents $ 148,686 1,867,650
Receivables and prepayments 267,995 139,605
’ 416,681 2,007,255
Prepaid insurance (Note 4) B 1,689,278 1,948,918
Reclamation bond - commutation account (Note . - +- :3,235,288 3,684,527
4) e e e
Environmenta! bonds ... - : 36,098 39,869
Mineral property interests (Note 5) 30,575,414 27,085,433
Property and equipment {Note 6) ‘ - s .-, 66,594 82,857
‘ a0 8 . 36,029,853 34,848,859
Liabilities
Current
Accounts:payables and accrued - & -391,424 446,928
liabilities . - ' & - o oo
Reclamation and environrr{ental obligations :
{Note 7) 744,222 882,860
1,135,646 1,329,788
Shareholders’ Equity .
Capital stock (Note 8) 48,109,247 47,234,247
Subscriptions received in advance 165,000 -
Contributed surplus 3,462,701 3,169,750
Deficit (16,842,741) (16,884,926)
' 34,894,207 33,519,071
$ 36,029,853 34,848,859

Commitments (Note 12)
Subsequent Events (Note 14)

{See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements)

On behalf of board:

“Shawn Kennedy” “John Arnold”

Shawn Kennedy, Director

John Arnold, Director



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the years ended March 31

2008 2007
General and administrative expenses
Accounting and audit 3 76,425 § 104,940
Amortization 24279 s 24,082
Equipment commissioning and testing 50,000 -
Insurance 292 487 303,040
Investor relations : 59,117 98,064
Legal - : 62,229 50,743
Office and other 32,555 S 51,286
Regulatory fees L 43,244 : 74,432
Rent ’ . 42,220 36,187
Salaries, consultants’ and dlrectors fees 123,066 258,870
Shareholder communications 83,024 - 92,779
Stock-based compensation (Note 8(d)) 244,224 1,072,218
Telecommunications ‘ 1,415 31,688
Travel 99,416 . 127,156
o 1,233,701 : © . 2,325,485
Loss before other items (1,233,701) {2,325,485)
Other ' : .
Accretion expense (97,950) ' (98,562)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (Note 13) (398,640) 12,288
Gain on sale of property and equment - - 23,717
Interest income . _ 156,736 . 238,723
Sale of mineral property interest =~ . 24,000 12,000
Gain on sale of net smelter royalty - 1,591,740 : -
' 1,275,886 - 188,166
Net income (loss} and comprehensive income ;
{loss) $ 42,185 § (2,137,319}
Basic income (loss) per share $ 0.00 § (0.02)
Diluted income (loss} per share $ 0.00 % {0.02)
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding 125,511,379 116,632,601

{See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements)



X-Cal Resources Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended March 31

2008 2007
Cash derived from (applied to)
Operating .
Net income (loss) $ 42185 § (2,137,319)
Stock-based compensation 244 224 1,072,218
Amortization - equipment 24,279 24,082
Insurance premium 249,640 249,621
Accretion expense 97,950 98,562
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) {(Note 13) 360,737 (4.276)
Gain on sale of property and equipment - (23,717)
Gain on sale of net smelter production royalty (1,591,740) -
Accrued interest - commutation account {(132,730) (142,405)
Changes in non-cash working capital - :
Receivables and prepayments,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,656 416,084
. T (701,799) {447,150)
Financing
Shares issued for cash, net of issuance costs and
subscriptions received in advance 676,500 10,043,559
Investing
Sale of net smelter production royalty 1,591,740 -
Mineral property acquisition -~ - (157,725) (5,171,420)
Mineral property expenditures - (3,247,990) (3.834,259)
‘Purchase of property and-equipment {8,016) (64,707)
Proceeds on sale of property and equipment 138,481 53,000
- {1,683,510) (9,017,386)
Foreign exchange loss on cashheld in foreign .
currency C {10,155) (643)
Net increase (decrease} in cash (1,718,964) 578,380
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 1,867,650 1,289,270
End of year $ 148686 $ 1,867,650
Cash : - $ 148,686 % 555,943
Term deposit - 1,311,707
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ~ 148,686 1,867,650
Non-cash investing and financing activities
Stock-based compensation capitalized in mineral
property interests $ 48,727 $ 132,472
Property and equipment acquisition for shares $ 363,500 $ 3,213,500
Reclamation and environmental obligation
capitalized in mineral property interest $ - $ 807
Accounts payable/receivable related to mineral
property interests $ 180,139 § 158,100

(See accompanying notes to consolidated financiat statements)
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
For the years ended March 31

Subscriptions

Number Capital Received in Contributed Accumulated

of Shares Stock Advance Surplus Deficit Total
Balance: March 31, 2006 76,135,255 33,809,188 % 168,000 $ 1,965,060 $ (14,747607) $ 21,194,641
Issuance of shares for
cash - private placement 37,500,000 10,640,000 (168,000) - - 10,472,000
Shares issuance costs (428,441) - - - (428,441)
Property acquisition 10,050,000 3,213,500 - - - 3,213,500
Stock-based compensation - - - 1,204,690 - 1,204,690
Nel loss for the year - - - ' - (2,137.319) {2,137.319)
Balance: March 31, 2007 123,685,255 47,234,247 . ) 3.169,75d (16,884,926} 33,519,071
Issuance of shares for '
cash - private placement 3,028,568 540,000 ) 165,000 - - 705,000
Shares issuance cosls - {28,500) _ - . - - {28,500)
Equipment acquisition .. , o
{Note 9) 1,000,000 350,000 - - - 350,000
Property acquisition 50,000 13,500 - - - 13,500
Stock-based compensation - - - 292,951 - 292,951
Net income for the year - - - ‘- 42,185 . 42,185
Balance: March 31, 2008 127,763,823 48,109,247 -3 185000 & 3462701 $ (16,842,741) $ 34,804,207

(See accompanying notes te consolidated financial statements)
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

1. Description of Business and Nature of Operations

X-Cal Resources Ltd. {the “Company”) is engaged in the exploration of its mineral property interests and
has not determined whether its properties contain reserves that are economically recoverable. The
business of exploring for resources involves a high degree of risk. Few properties that are explored
ultimately are developed into producing mines. Major expenses may be required to establish ore
reserves, develop metallurgical processes, and construct mining and processing facilities at a particular
site. There is no assurance that the Company will be successful in its search.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles GAAP on a going-concern basis. This presumes funds will be available to finance
on-going development, operations and capital expenditures, and the realization of assets and the payment
of liabilities in the normal course of operations for the foreseeable future. These financial statements do
not give effect to adjustments that would be necessary to the carrying values and ciassifications of assets
and liabilities should the Company be unable to continue as a going-concern.

The recovery of the amount recorded for mineral property interests is dependent upon the ability of the
Company to locate economically recoverable reserves, obtain the financing necessary to complete
exploration and development of the properties, future mineral prices, and upon future profitable
production. T

2.  Summary of Significaﬁt Accounting Policies

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian GAAP using the following significant accounting policies and are expressed in Canadian dollars.

a) Basis of presentation and principles of consofidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounis of the Company and X-Cal U.S.A. Inc, its
wholly-owned integrated subsidiary, and its 100% interest in New Sleeper Gold LLC and Sleeper Mining
Company, LLC. Cenrtain of the comparative figures are reclassified tc conform to the current year's
presentation,

b) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Significant
areas requiring the use of estimates include rates for amortization, accretion expense on reclamation and
environmental obligations, impairment of mineral property interests, balances of accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, reclamation and environmental obligation, valuation allowance for future tax assets, and
the calculation of stock-based compensation expense. While management believes the estimales are
reasonable, actual results could differ from those estimates.

c) Revenue recognition

Interest income is accrued as earned on the term deposits at the stated rate over the term to maturity.
The Company recognizes income on the sale of assets in accordance with sales agreements.



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
d) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated by the temporal method whereby monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date; non-monetary assets
are translated at rates prevailing when acquired; and revenues and expenses are translated at the
exchange rate in effect on the dates they occur. Translation gains and losses are included in the results of
operations for the year.

e) Cash and cash equivalents

In accordance with GAAP, thé Company ‘classifies highly liquid short-term investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and have maturltles of 90 days or less from the date of acquisition
as cash equivalents.

f) Mineral property interests

Mineral property interests represent acquisition, holding and exploration costs, less amounts recovered,
written off or written down to date. If production is attained, these costs will be amortized using the unit-of-
production method based on eslimated reserves. Costs related to properties that are abandoned or
considered uneconomic in the foreseeable future are written off.

When properiies are acquired by the Company under agreements requiring future acquisition payments to
be made at the sole discretion of the Company, those future payments, whether in cash or shares, are
recorded only when the Company has made or becomes obliged to make the payment or to issue the
shares.

When properties are sold by the Company under agreements requiring future purchase payments to be
made at the sole discretion of the purchaser, those future payments, whether in cash or shares, are
recorded only when the purchaser has made or becomes obliged to make the payment or to issue the
shares.

All deferred mineral property expenditures are reviewed annually, on a property-by-property basis, to
consider whether there are any conditions that may indicate impairment. When the carrying value of a
property exceeds its net recoverable amount thal may be estimated by quantifiable evidence of an
economic geological resource or reserve, mineral expenditure commitments or the Company's
assessment of its ability to sell the property for an amount exceeding the deferred costs, provision is made
for the impairment in value.
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 : ~

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
a) Reclamation and environmental costs

The Company is subject to the laws and regulations relating to environmental matters in jurisdictions in
which it operates, including those relating to property reclamation, discharge of hazardous material and
other matters. The Company may also be held liable should environmental problems be discovered that
were caused by former owners and operators of its existing properties and properties in which it previously
had an interest.

The Company recognizes the fair value of its reclamation and environmental obligations in the financial
statements as a liability in the year in which the obligation is assumed on acquisition or is incurred in
exploration of properties. The fair value of the liability .is initially recorded, at the discounted value of
expected future cash outlays to satisfy the obligations, with -a.corresponding increase to mineral property
interests. The liability is adjusted al the end of each year to reflect changes in the present value of the
estimated future cash outlays underlying the obligation. The Company records that increase in the
carrying amount of the obligation as accretion expense.
h)  Property and equipment s
Property and equipment are recorded at cost Iess accumu[ated amorllzatlon All property and equipment
is amortized on the straight-line method over five years.

i) Capital stock issued for other than cash

Capital stock issued for other than cash is valued at the price at which the stock _trédéd on the principal
stock exchange on which the stock trades at the time the related agreement to issue stock is made or, if
such issuance is at the option of the Company, at the time the Company determines o issue such stock.

i) Stock-ba'sed cbmpénsation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation expense using the fair value based method with
respect to all stock-based payments to directors, employees and non-employees, including awards that
are direct awards of stock and call for settlement in cash or other assets, or stock appreciation rights that
call for settlement by the issuance of equity instruments. Under this method, stock-based payments are
recorded as an expense .over the vesting period or when the awards are granted, with a corresponding
increase to contributed surplus under shareholders’ equity. When stock options are exercised, the
corresponding fair value is transferred from contributed surplus to capital stock.

k) Income taxes

The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method
future income lax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences atiributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax basis, and losses carried forward. Future income tax assets and liabilities are measured
using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on future income tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in operations in the year in which the change is
enacted or substantially assumed. The amount of future income tax asset is limited to the amount of the
benefit that is more likely than not to be realized.

11t



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
1) Income (loss} per share

Income (loss) per share is determined by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year. The Company uses the treasury stock method to determine
the dilutive effect of stock options. This method assumes that proceeds received from the exercise of
stock options and warrants are used to repurchase common shares at the average market price during the
year. No exercise or conversion is assumed during the years in which a net loss is incurred as the effect is
anti-dilutive.

m) Change in Accounting Polucues

Effective April 1, 2007, the Company adopted the foIIowmg new accounting standards issued by the
Canadian Instatute of Chartered Accountants {("CICA”) relating to financial instruments. The adoption of
these new accounting policies had no impact on the Company’s opening equity.

i) Comprehensive Income i

Comprehensive income is the overall change in the net assets of the Company for a period, other than
changes attributable to transactions with shareholders. It is made up of net income and other
comprehenswe income. The historical make up of net income has not changed. Other comprehensive
income includes gains or losses, which GAAF' requires to be recogmzed in a period but excluded from
net income for that period.

ii) Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement

This standard sets out the criteria for the recognition and measurement of financial instruments for
fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2006. This standard requires all financial statements
within its scope, including derivatives, to be included on a Company’s balance sheet and measured
either at fair value or, in certain circumstances when fair value may not be considered most relevant,
at cost or amortized cost. Changes in fair value are to be recognized in the statements of operations
and comprehensive income.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes party to the contract
creating the item. Any of the Company’s outstanding financial assets and liabilities at the effective
date of adoption are recognized .and measured in accordance with the new requirements as if these
requirements had always been in effect. There were no changes to the fair values of assets and
liabilities prior to April 1, 2007 recognlzed by adjusting cpening deficit or opening accumulated other
comprehenswe mcome

All financial instruments are to be classified into one of the following five categories; held-for-trading,
held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financiat assets or other financial liabilities.
Initial and subsequent measurement and recognition of changes in the value of financial instruments
depends on their initial classification:

i. Held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, and other financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value and subsequently measured al amortized cost. Amortization of premiums
or discounts and losses due to impairment are included in current year net income or loss.

i. Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Revaluation gains and losses are
included in other comprehensive income until the asset is removed from the balance sheet.

iii. Held-for-trading financial instruments are measured at fair value. All gains and losses are
included in net income or loss in the year they arise.




X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
n) Future Accounting Changes

The CICA has issued the following new Handbook sections that will become effective on April 1, 2008 for
the Company: ‘

+ Section 3862, "Financial Instruments - Disclosures”

* Section 3863, “Financial Instruments - Presentation”

» Section 1535, “Capital Disclosures”

+ Section 1400, “Going-Concemn’.

CICA Handbook Section 3862 modifies the disclosure reqwrements for Section 3861, “Financial
Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation”, including required discigsure for the assessment of the
significance of financial instruments for an entlty s financial. position and performance, and of the extent of
risks arising from financial instruments to which the Company is exposed and how the Company manages
those risks. . _

-

Section 3863 carries forward the presentation requirements of Section 3861. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of the adoption of these new sections.

CICA Handbook Section 1535 establlshes standards for dlsclosmg mformatlon about an entity’s capital
and how it is. managed The entity's disclosure should mclude mformatson about its objectives, policies and
procedures for managing cap:tal and dlsclose whether it has complxed with any capital requirements to
which it is subject and the consequences of non- compllance The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of adoption of this new section.

CICA Handbook Section 1400 requires management to make ‘an assessment of a company’s ability to
continue as a going-concern. When financial statements are not prepared on a going-concern basis that
fact shall be disclosed together with the basis on which the financial statements are prepared and the
reason why the company is not considered a going-concern. The Company is in the process of assessing
the impact of this new section on its consolidated financial statements. .

These new accounting pronouncements currently have noimpact.on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company.

in 2006, the Canadian Accounting -Standards Board ("AcSB") published a new strategic plan that will
significantly affect financial reporting requirements for Canadian: companies. The AcSB strategic plan
outlines the convergence of Canadian GAAP with.IFRS over an expected five year transitional period. In
February 2008, the AcSB announced thal 2011 is the changeover date for publicly-listed companies to
use IFRS, replacing Canada's own GAAP. The date is for interim and annual financial statements retating
to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. The transition date of January 1, 2011 will require
the restatement for comparative purposes of amounts reported by the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2010 and earlier where applicable. While the Company has begun assessing the adoption
of IFRS for 2011, the financial reporting |mpact of the trans;t:on to IFRS cannot be reasonably estimated at
this time. . PRI
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007"

3. Financial instruments
a) Fair value

The Company’s financial instruments include cash and term deposits, receivables, reclamation bond -
commutation account, environmental bonds, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Cash and term
deposits are designated as held-for-trading; receivables are designated as loans and receivables;
reclamation bond — commutation account and environmenta! bonds are classified as held-to-maturity; and
accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

Prior to the adoption of Section 3855, the carrying values of cash and term deposits, receivables, and
accounts payables and accrued liabilities approximated their fair values because of the short-term maturity
of these financial instruments. The reclamation bond approximated its fair value as it earned interest at
market rates. ) :

b} Interest rate risk

The Company is hot exposed to sngmflcant mteresl rate pflce nsk due to the short-term maturlty of its
monetary assets and liabilities. R

c) Credit risk

The Company’s financial assets that are exposec to credit risk consist primarily of cash and term deposits
and receivables. The Company’s cash and term deposits are held at major Canadian and US financial
institutions. The Company. maintains provisions for potential credit losses for its receivables, ‘and any
losses to date have been within management's expectations.

d) Foreign currency risk

The Company incurs expenditures in both Canadian and US dollars and obtains financing in Canadian
dollars. Therefore, the Company is exposed to foreign currency risk. The Company does not use
derivative instruments to mitigate that risk. ,

4. Prepaid Insurance and Reclamation Bond — Commutation Account

In 2004, New Sleeper Gold LLC entered into an insurance-backed financial assurance program including
a mine reclamation policy and a pollution legal liability policy for the Sleeper Gold Project. As part of the
policy, New Sleeper Gold LLC paid an insurance premium and put funds in a commutation account used
to reimburse reclamation costs and indemnity claims paid by New Sleeper Gold LLC.

The insurance policy covers reclamation costs in the event New Sleeper Goid LLC defaults on payment of
its reclamation costs up to an aggregate of US$25 million. The insurance premium is being amortized
over ten years and the prepaid insurance balance at March 31, 2008 is $1,699,278 (2007 - $1,948,918).
The commutation account earns interest at an annual effective rate equal to the one-year constant
maturity treasury rate prevailing on the first day of each anniversary year. The balance in the
commutation account at March 31, 2008 is $2,927,338 (2007 - $3,334,648). Included in reclamation bond
— commutation account is a rectamation bond held with the government in the amount of $307,950 (2007 -
$349,879).

14
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

5. Mineral Property Interests

Nevada, USA: 2008 2007
Sleeper Gold Project $ 27.664,303 § 24,246,637

Mill Claims 2,472,301 2,448,315
Reese River ' ' 418,568 376,100
Spring Valley ' 20,242 14,481

: $ 30,575,414 § 27,085,433

Sleeper Gold Project
From December 1993 to December 2G03, the Company‘acquired' rights; ‘to éxplore and de\fe‘lop the
Sleeper Gold Project properties. Also, the Company had an option to purchase the 50% interest of a joint
venture partner.
In January 2004, the Company purchased the interest of the former joint venture partner, Kinross Gold
Corporation, and-formed a new joint venture (New Sleeper Gold LLC) with New Sleeper Gold Corporation
to finance exploration of the property. Certain terms of the new joint venture are set out below:

» New Sleeper Gold Corporation contributed US$20,000,000 in cash to the joint venture.

* -The Company contributed its interest in the Sleeper Gold Project to the joint venture.

*»  The US%20,000,000 cash contribution by New Sieeper Gold Corporation was applied to:

i) US$4,000,000 to exercise the option to purchase the Kinross Gold interest in the

properties;
i) US$8,000,000 to fund a reclamation and pollution legal liability insurance policy and

a reclamation reserve of which US$5,300,G00 was expended by March 31, 2004; the
remaining US$2,700,000 was released subsequently and made available for
exploration and general operating purposes; and

iii) tS$8,000,000 for exploration and general operating purposes:

The Cempany acquired the remaining 50% interest in the New Sleeper Gold LLC joint venture on May 16,
2006 by a cash payment of $5,000,000 and the issue of 10,000,000 shares of its common stock at a
market value of $0.32 per share, representing an aggregate of $8,200,000 paid to New Sieeper Gold
Corporation. The Company now owns 100% of New Sleeper Gold LLC.

In December 2008, the Company acquired title to previously leased mineral claims (part of the Sleeper
Gold Project) for US$750,000 (US$300,000 paid to date) plus 250,000 shares (100,000 issued to date).

Payment can be made as four equal payments. over four years or accelerated at the Company's
discretion. The mineral claims are lodged as security against future payments. As at March 31, 2008, the
remaining balance to complete this buyout is US$450,000 (2007 - US$600,000} and 150,000 (2007 —
200,000} common shares of the Company.

The Company has compleled the sale of a 1% net smelter production royalty on the Sleeper Gold
Property to the Ken Snyder Gold Syndicate for $1,591,740 {US%1,500,000).

15



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

5. Mineral Property Interests {cont'd)
Mill Claims |

The Mill Creek Gold Property is owned 100% by the Company. The property, located in Lander County,
Nevada, is an early stage (grass roots) gold project. A US$1,600,000 exploration work program that
included drilling, mapping, sampling and geophysics has been completed by the Company on the
Property. : ‘

The Company has completed an extensive permitting process for the Mill Creek (Goat Window) Property,
which has resulted in approval of a Plan of Operations Permit.

Reese River

On December 12, 2005, the Company entered into a formal agreement with Placer Dome U.S. Inc.
(“Placer Dome”) a subsidiary of Barrick Gold U.S. Inc. (“Barrick Gold"), to jointly explore three claim blocks
in the Reese River Pediment, totaling 3,000 acres located in Lander County, Nevada. Tiile of the claims
has been transferred from Placer Dome to the Company. The Company has carried out a US$200,000
drilfing program developed by both parties. The Company's expenditures for the above work exceeds the
minimum required, and within the time allotted under the agreement. Placer Dome’s interest (now owned
by Barrick Gold) has now reverted to a 2% net smelter returns royalty.

Spring Valley

The Company has staked 38 claims totaling 760 acres located in the Spring Valley area, Pershing County,
Nevada. The Company granted a 1% net smelter production royalty on this property to a consultant to the
Company. < : : : ‘

Title to Mineral Properties

Although the Company has taken steps to verify the title to mineral properties in which it has an interest in
accordance with industry standards for the current stage of exploration of such properties, these
procedures do not guarantee the Company’s title. Property titlte may be subject to unregistered prior
agreements or transfers and title may be affected by undetected defecls. ’ '

Realization of Assets

The investment in and expenditures on mineral property interests comprise a significant portion of the
Company's assets. Realization of the Company's investment in these assets is dependent upon the
establishment of legal ownership, the obtaining of permits, the satisfaction of governmental requirements
and possibie aboriginal rights, and the attainment of successful production from the properties or from the
proceeds of their disposition. '

Mineral exploration and development is highly speculative and involves inherent risks. While rewards if a
feasible ore body is discovered might be substantial few properties that are explored are ultimately
development into producing mines. There can be no assurance that the current exploration programs by
the Company will result in the discovery of economically viable quantities of ore.
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

6. Property and Equipment

Accumulated Net

March 31, 2008 Cost Amortization Book Value
Vehicles 3 109,697 § 67,673 42,024
Office equipment 116,143 . 91,802 24,341
Leasehold improvements 18,650 18,421 229
$ 244490 % 177,896 66,594

Accumulated Net

March 31, 2007 Cost Amortization Book Value
Vehicles - $ 109697 % . , 54,156 55,541
Office equipment . 108,127 o 81,540 26,587
~Leasehold improvements ... 18,650 W 17,921 729
| 'S 236474 % . 153617 82,857

7. Reclamation and Environmental Obligations

Subject to the laws and regulations relating to environmental matters, the Company may be held liable for

future site restoration costs

As at March 31, 2008 and 2007 the following information was assumed in measunng the reclamatlon and

environmental obligation:

2008
Undiscounted amount required $ 4,163,997 $
(US$4,056,500) . , _
Expected timing.of payments . 2009 - 2053
Average credit-adjusted risk-free rate . 11.00%
Inflation factor 2.0%

The commutation account (Note 4) is used to relmburse reclamation costs and indemnity claims paid by

the Company

2007

4,676,739

2008 - 2053
11.00%

2.0%

The following table presents the reconc:llatlon of the hability for the asset reurement obligation:

2008 " 2007

Balance, beginning of year $ 882,360 § 468,949
Acquisition of remaining 50% interest

in New Sieeper Gold LLC . - ) .- 468,949
Changes in credit-adjusted risk-free

rate . . 22,097
Accretion expense 97,950 98,562
Payments made (138,053) {111,718)
Change in estimated cash flows - {63,979)
Foreign exchange adjustment (98,535) -

s 744,222 % 882,860
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

8. Capital Stock and Contributed Surplus

a) Authorized
Unlimited common shares without par value.

b) Stock options

The Company has a 10% rolling stock option ptan under which directors, officers and other key employees
and consultants to the Company and its subsidiary may be granted options to purchase shares. The
number of common shares subject to options granted under the plan is 5% of the issued capital at the
date of the grant with respect 10 any one optionee, not to exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding
common shares of the Company in aggregate. Options issued under the plan may be exercised during a
period determined by the board of directors, which cannot exceed five years.

2008

_ Weighted
Number of Average
Shares Exercise Price

AN

Outstanding, beginning of - o N
year s (8,960,000 $0.36

Number of

2007
Weighted
Average

Shares Exercise Price

' 6,015,000

' $ 0.45
Granted 1,825,000 ~$026 5195000 $0.35
Expired - (215,000) $ 0.50 (2,250,000) $0.58
Forfeited C T (460,000) $0.33 - -
Outstanding, end of year 10,110.000 T $0.34 8,960,000 $0.36

The options granted during the year have an immediate vesting term. As al March 31, 2008, the
Company had stock options outstanding and exercisable, enabling the holders to acquire common shares

as follows:
Number of Shares Exercise Price
200,000 $0.45
75,000 $0.35
1,325,000 - . $0.33
775,000 © $0.35
20,000 $0.35
640,000 $0.50
390,000 $0.20
20,000 i $0.20
150,000 $0.35
750,000 ' $0.35
615,000 $0.20
1,200,000 $0.33
1,700,000 $0.35
2,250,000 $0.35
10,110,000

Expiry Date

April 1, 2008
December 1, 2008
February 16, 2009
May 31, 2009 '
July 28, 2009
December 13, 2009
January 17, 2010
February 28, 2010
March 23, 2010
June 12, 2010
September 24, 2010
February 16, 2011
May 31, 2011
March 23, 2012

The weighted average remaining contractuat life of stock options as at March 31, 2008 is 2.50 years

(2007 — 3.42 years).
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - o
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 & . -

8. Capital Stock and Contributed Surplus {cont'd)

c) Warrants

As al March 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had no outstanding share warrents.

d) Stock-based compensation

The Company use's the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the value of the options at each

grant date using the following weighted average assumptions for the years ended March 31, 2008 and
2007:

2008 . ...2007
Risk-free rate of return 4.45% 4.10%
Expected dividend yield - -
Expected stock price volatility 163.62% 86.70%
* Expected option life in years o . 278 4.49

Option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions-including the expected price
volatility. Changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.

During the year ended March 3, 2008 the compensatlon cost of stock aoptions granted was $292,951
(30.16 per share), $244,224 of which was expensed and $48,727 was capitalized lo mineral properties.
Stock-based compensatlon attributable to employees and consultants was - $223,108, and to directors -
$69,843. -

During the year ended March 31, 2007, the compensation Gost of stock options granted was $1,204,690,
of which $1,072,218 was expensed and $132,472 was capitalized to mineral properties. Stock-based
compensation attributable lo directors was - $817,903, and to employees and consultants - $286,787.

e) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per "share is- computed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding. The dilutivé effect of potentiat common shares outstanding is included in diluted income per
share. The computations of basic income (loss) per share and diluted income (Ioss) per share for 2008
and 2007 are as follows: .

2008 2007

Net income (loss) from operations $ 42,185 § (2,137,319}
Basic weighted average shares 125,511,379 116,632,601
Effec! of dilutive securities '

Stock options 55,804 -
Dilutive potential common shares _ 125,567,273 116,632,601
Income {loss) per share

Basic 3 000 % (0.02)

Dituted 3 000 $§ (0.02)
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

9. Related Party Transactions

The Company paid legal fees and expenses of $23,130 (2007 - $34,193) to a law firm in which a director
of the Company is a partner, of which $7,236 (2007 - $8,335) is included in accounts payable. The
Company paid an aggregate of $66,000 (2007 - $59,000) in consulting fees to a director and officer of the
Company, of which $11,550 (2007 - $nil} is included in accounts payable. The Company paid salaries of
$160,000 (2007 - $160,000) to a director and officer of the Company and $36,000 (2007 - $23,833) to a
party related to a director and officer of the Company. During the year ended March 31, 2007, a $150,000
bonus was paid to a director and officer of the Company. As at March 31, 2008, $10,934 (2007 - $10,487)
was due from a director and officer of the Company with respect to travel advances, and is included in
receivables and prepayments.

The above transactions and balances are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the
exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

The Company issued 1,000,000 common shares for equipment to a company with a common director and
officer. The common shares were valued at $350,000 ($0.35 per share}, which was the resale value of
the equipment.

10. Income Tax

The components of the Company's future income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

2008 2007

Mineral properties tax value in excess of book value $ (95,000) § 124,000
Share issue costs 78,000 117,000
Excess of accounting basis over tax basis '

of SR&ED expenditures and property

and equipment 49000 87,000
Non-capital losses carried forward : 1,598,000 1,813,000
US net operating losses carried forward 1,369,000 219,000
Total net future income {ax asset 2,999,000 2,360,000
Valuation allowance {2,999,000) (2,360,000)
Net book value $ - % -

The net future tax asset resulting from these items has not been recognized in these accounts, as
realization is not considered more likely than not. A valuation allowance has been applied against the
entire net future income tax asset.
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

10. Income Tax (cont’d)

The Company has non-capital losses of $5,699,000 available to reduce fulure taxable income, which
under Canadian income tax laws expire as follows:

2009 . $ 433,000

2010 ' 947,000
2014 996,000
2015 . ' 815,000
2026 659,000
2027 : : - 1,069,000
2028 S IR ' ' 780,000

- - $ 5,699,000

The Company also has reported net operating losses in the US of US$4,734,000 that are available to
reduce taxable income in the future years, These losses will expire from 2011 to 2027,

The reconciliation of income tax provision computed at the statutory rates of 28% (2007 — 34.12%) to the
reported income tax provision is as follows:

2008 2007
Income tax recovery (expense) based on
statutory rate $ (14,000) % 729,000
Stock-based compensation (83,000) (366,000)
Share issue costs 32,000 40,000
Differences between amortization and capital
cast allowance (8,000) {8,000)
Non-deductible expense (2,000) (800)
Difference due to rate change 13,000 -
Recognized (unrecognized) tax losses 62,000 {394,200)
$ - § -
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 -

11. Segmented Information

The Company operates in one industry segment, the mineral resource industry, and in two geographical
segments, Canada and the United States. All current exploration activities are conducted in Nevada, US.
The net loss and assets identifiable within those geographic areas are as follows:

2008 2007
Net income (loss)

Canada $ 482,622 - $ (1,878,122)
USA (440,437} (259,197)
_ $ 42,185 $ (2,137,319)

Assets - . :
Canada . - $ 485,438 $ 1,750,916
" USA 35,544,415 33,097,949
$ 36,029,853 $ 34,848,859

12. Commitments
a) Office leases,

The Company leases officé space in Vancouver and Nevada. The lease agreement for office space in
Vancouver expires in July 2009 and requires the Company to pay $25,632 annually as its share of base
rent plus operating costs. The Vancouver lease will not be renewed and has been sublet for the balance of
the term. The Company is negotiating. more cost-effective British Columbia premises. The lease
agreement for office space in Nevada expires in November 2008 and will be renewed. The Nevada office
lease requires the Company to pay $18,000 annually as its share of base rent.

b) Management agreements

The Company has a five-year employment agreement dated September 1, 2004 whereby it will pay an
administrative manager $72,000 per annum. Currently, by mutual agreement between the parties, the
employee is receiving $36,000 per annum as payment in full for services provided. Should the Company
terminate the agreement or should the Company have an effective change of control, it will be liable for
payment of one year's salary at the full rate of $72,000.

The Company has an employment contract with its President. Under the terms of thal contract,
remuneration is reviewable on Oclober 1 of each year, when such remuneration may be increased but not
decreased. The remuneration for the President is currently $160,000 per annum. The contract provides
that, in the event of termination by the Company, the President shall receive three times the annual
amount of salary in the year of termination plus US$150,000.

The Company entered into an employment contract with an officer of the Company effective April 1, 2007
whereby it will pay the officer $66,000 per annum. Under the terms of that contract, remuneration is
reviewable on April 1 of each year, when such remuneration may be increased but not decreased. The
contract provides that, in the event of termination by the Company, the officer shall receive two times the
annual amount of salary in the year of termination.
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X-Cal Resources Ltd. .
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements .
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

13. Foreign Exchange Gain (Loss)

The foreign exchange foss in 2008 was largely due to fact the Reclamation Bond - Commutation Account
{Note 4) is carried in US dollars and the March 31, 2008 US dollar exchange rate dropped drastically
compared to the March 31, 2007 rate. A breakdown of this figure is as follows:

2008 2007
Reclamation bond - commutation account $ (443,916) $ 4,814
Environmental bond {453) (342)
Reclamation and environmental obligation 98,535 -
Cash and term deposit {10,155) (643)
Accounts payable {4,748) 447
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) {360,737) 4,276
Realized foreign exchange gain (loss) {37,903) 8,012
Foreign exchange gain (loss) - . $ (398,640) . $ 12,288

14. Subsequent Events
Private placement

The Company completed a private placement of 1,100,000 of its common shares to fund ongoing mineral
exploration on the Company’s propert:es A dlrector of the Company purchased 500 000 shares of this
private placement. .

The Company completéd ‘a 'p(ivéte placement of 8,062,500 units, each unit consisting of one common
share and one common share purchase warrant entitiing the holder to purchase one additional common
share at a price of $0.10 per share for a period of one year. Directors of the Company purchased
1,750,000 units of this private placement.

The Company issued the following shares subsequent to the year-end:

Gross
' ' R . ) _ Issue Price  Proceeds to
Date : " Type "~ No. of shares’ Per Share Company
Aprit 4, 2008 " Private Placement 1,100,000 $0.15 $ 165,000
June 11, 2008 Private Placement 8,062,500 $0.08 $ 645,000

Mineral property interests claim fees

All Annual Government Fees for the Company's Nevada Mineral Claims: Sleeper,'MiIl Creek, Reese River
and WR/Spring Valley have been paid to September 1, 2009. -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(for the year ended March 31, 2008)

This year end Management Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") reviews the operating results and.’

financial position of X-Cal Resources Ltd. {(*X-Cal” or the “*Company”) and compares the financial
results for the fourth quarter ending March 31, 2008 with those of the corresponding quarter of
2007. ltis alse an update to the Company’'s annual MD&A for the year ended March 31, 2007
and should be read in conjunction with the audited March 31, 2008- Consolidated Financial
Statements and related notes. The reader is encouraged to review the Company’s financial
statements in conjunction with this document, copies of which are fited on the SEDAR website:
www.sedar.com.

The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in Canada (*Canadian GAAP™). All dollar figures included therein and in the
following discussion and analysis are quoted in Canadian dolfars unless otherwise noted.

The information in this Management Discussion and Analysis contains forward-looking
statements. These statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those included in the forward- -locking statements. The
forward-looking statements are made as of June 17, 2008. |

All references to “2008" refer to the year ended March 31, 2008 and ail references to “2007" refer
to the year ended March 31, 2007, unless othen.wse noled S

'

General

The Company is an active resource exploration company focused on the identification and
delineation of gold and silver mineral resources on its Sleeper Gold, Mill Creek, and Spring Valley
properties in Nevada, USA. Under the terms of an agreement with Placer Dome US (a subsidiary
of Barrick Gold) the Company has acquired a fourth Nevada gold property, the Reese River
Pediment project.

The Company depends on private placements and joint ventures to fund its corporate activities.
These proceeds are used for investigation and appraisal of targeted mineral zones on its
concessions, the administration and malntenance of the Companys operations, and compliance
with all regulatory requirements.

The gold industry must replace its reserves regularly. Nevadais one area where the investment
in infrastructure has already been made. Nevada is a prime location for reserve replacement
where low cash cost ounces have historically been found. Higher gold prices, if they occur, would
be a bonus. Nevada, in terms of geology and resources, political risk and cost-efficiency, is a
practical area in which to focus exploration activity. Therefore the Company concentrates the
majority of its time, effort, and resources on mineral exploratlon opportunities in this gold
producing slate.

The Company's mandate is to develop its gold properties. Management, directors and
consultants are applying their combined experience and expertise to exploration of the
Company's Nevada gold properties.

Funding the Company's explaration work programs is dependent on certain factors, not all of
which are under the Company's control. The general liquidity of the markets, which are in turn
dependent on the price of gold and other commodmes is a major factor affecting the Company’s
on-going objectives.

s
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The potential profitability of the Sleeper, Mill Creek, Reese River and Spring Valley Area Gold
Projects and cther gold mining projects is dependent upon the market price of gold, silver and
other concentrates produced and changes in currency exchange rates of the Canadian and
United States dollars. The prices of precious and base metals and currency exchange rates have
fluctuated significantly and are affected by numerous factors beyond the Company's control,
including but not limited to, international economic and political conditions, global and regional
consumption patterns, speculative trading activities, levels of supply and demand, avaitability and
costs of metal substitutes, metal stock levels maintained by producers and others, inventory
carrying cosis and inflation and interest rates. These factors affect the price of precious and base
metals and therefore the economic viability of the Companys mining interests, and they cannot
accurately be predicted.

Sleeper Gold Property

Nofe: All references to years 2008 2007 2006, refer to work programs carried out within the
calendar year. -

The Sleeper Gold Property includes a historic open pit mine operated by AMAX Gold from 1986
until 1996, which produced 1.66 million ounces of gold and 2.3 million ounces of silver. The
property has been the subject of several exploration programs.  These programs have produced
an extenswe database for current exploratlon targeting and continuing studles

The Sleeper Gold Project is a 30 square ‘mile gold district located in Humboldt County. Nevada.
A 50% interest in the Sleeper Gold Project was acquired by New Sleeper Gold Corporation, a
publicly traded reporting issuer, in return for providing initial funding to the New Sleeper Gold LLC
joint venture (the "Sleeper Joint Venture™) (50% X-Cal/50% New Sleeper Gold Corporation). A
Nationat Instrument 43-101-compliant technical report was submitted by each. party. The
technical reports are available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

The Company contributed its interest in the Sleeper Gold Project to the Sleeper Joint Venture and
New Sleeper Gold Corporation capitalized the Sleeper Joint Venture with US $20,000,000. The
Sleeper Joint Venture company treasury was independent of both companies and was managed
on behalf of the Sleeper Joint Venture by New Sleeper Gold Corporation..

X-Cal acquired the 50% interest from New Sleeper Gold Corporation (now Reunion Goid
Corporation) in the Sleeper Joint Venture on May 16, 2008. The Company paid CDN$5,000,000
and delivered 10 million common shares at a deemed value of $0.32 per share ($3,200,000), with
resale restrictions attached. The Company now owns 100% of New Sleeper Gold LLC.

Title of the York Leased Lands, which are part of the Sleeper Gold Project, has been signed over
to X-Cal concurrent with a buy out agreement between the Company and York Mines. The buy
out was initiated with a payment to York Mines consisting of US $150,000 and 50,000 common
shares. To complete the buyout, a further US $600,000 and 200,000 common shares of X-Cal
was required. Payment can be made as four equal payments over four years, or accelerated at
the Company's discretion. At the date of this report, the remaining balance to complete this
buyout is US$450,000 and 150,000 common shares of X-Cal.

The exploration program for the years 2004 through early 2006 included drilling of 82,240 feet of
core and reverse circulation drilling in 2004, and 22,524 feet of core and reverse circulation
driling in 2005. Extensive exploration targeling studies and surveys were initiated and
substanhally compieted late in the two year program. The results of the studies established a
better definition of exploration targats.

The Company assembled a panel of professionals to review the Sleeper Gold Project and' to
make recommendations for ongoing work. Two of the independent panel members, Dr. Richard
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Sillitoe and Dr. Jeffrey Hedenquist, provided the Company with their expert views in the form of:
“Observations on the Sleeper Gold Project, Nevada” by Dr. Jeffrey Hedenquist (December 2005)
and a separate paper "Exploration Potential of the Sleeper Project, Nevada” by Dr. Richard H.
Sillitoe (January, 2006). These papers are not NI-43-101 reports and should be considered a
supplement to NI-43-101 documents for the project.

A detailed NI-43-101 Technical Report {(March 2006) authored by Robert E. Thomason, M.Sc.,
L.Geo. and co-authored by Larry Kornze, B.Sc..P.E. and Winthrop A. Rowe, M.Sc,C.P.G.
reviewed all previous work on the property. The report established the basis for determination of
drill target areas.

Both Dr. Sillitoe's report and the NI-43-101 Technical Report (March 2006) were filed on SEDAR.
Dr. Jeffrey Hedenquist's report was not filed on SEDAR but can be found in its entirety at the
Company's websile www.x-cal.com.

A combination of definition and exploration drilling is ongoing at Sleeper.

From August 2006 to November 2006 ten reverse-circulation (RC) drill holes totaling 10,803 feet
were completed in the Range Front Target. This.is a structural zone that is +3 miles in length,
located parallel and to. the east of the Sleeper Mlne Site.

In December 2006 drilting moved to the Fa‘cilities area. This is a mineralized zone east of the
previously mined pit under the now reelaimed, AMAX mill and crusher location. During 2006 two
RC holes were completed for 1. 460 feet and two core holes were drilled totalrng 1,405 feet.

From January to the end. of March 2007 twenty-one RC holes totaling 12, 865 feet and two core
holes totaling 1,330 feet were completed in the Facilities Area. From the end of March 2007 to
the end of June 2007, twenty-seven RC holes totaling 17,165 feet and 5 core holes totaling 2,768
feet were completed in the Facililies Area.

A recent break-through in geolog|c understandmg has significant implications for the modeling of
and possible future mining of the Facilities Area. Detarled examination of core indicates a low-
angle stratigraphic unit that appears to control mineralization. This was not recognized previously
in the reverse-circulation (chip type) drilling. Gold and silver values can be placed within the
stratigraphic layer on repeated assay data cross-sections. The strata can be projected east, up-
dip to the range front break and Jocated there on the surface. The western projection passes
underneath the mine pit, through significant areas of no data. Geologic cross-sections that reflect
the revised Sleeper Geology are being submitted to Mine Deveiopment Associates as framework
for the pending resource calculations.

There is much work to be done, but the tonnage and fow strip ratio implications for the Facilities
Area are encouraging. Other target areas may be re-drilled in light of the new interpretation.
Readers are further encouraged to view the Company's news releases which include plan maps
and assay results available on the X-Cal Resources Ltd. website at www.x-cal.com and on the
SEDAR website at www.sedar.com.

The West Wood Breccia Area is a zone of hydrothermal brecciation and veining located
immediately southwest of the main-open pit at the Sleeper Mine. Previous work outlined a
mineralized area approximately 800 feet (250 melers) long and 320 feet (100 meters) wide.
Earlier hrgh-grade intercepts at West Wood can be reviewed in the NI-43-101 Technical Report
for the property available at www.x-cal.com or on SEDAR. Highlight assays are contained in the
2007 X-Cal Annual Report. At West Wood drilling is in-filling the zone of mineralization and
expanding it, both to the south and west. From January 1o the end of March 2007 two core holes
totaling 1,691 feet and one RC for. 1,560 feet.were completed. From the end of March 2007 to
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the end of June 2007 two RC holes totaling 2,621 feet and four core holes totaling 4,352 feet
were completed in the West Wood Breccia Area.

An indication of a possibly deeper zone located directly underneath the known high-grade
mineralization will also continue to be tested (see March 8, 2007 press release).

The NW target is located north-west of the pit, approximately 1,500 meters north of West Wood. It
is one of the areas where exploration with the objective of a breakthrough new discovery is in
progress. The January 2006 paper “Exploration Potential of the Sleeper Project” by Dr. Richard
Sillitoe describes this and five other priority exploration targets.

Current drilling in the NW area has encountered a silicified sulphide breccia. In the period from
January to the end of March 2007 four core holes totaling 4,228 feet were completed in the NW
area. From a geological perspective the hydrothermal alteration is apparent and encouraging.
Drill testing of this area will continue.

X-Cal has prepared a bulk sample from the above ground heap materials on which cotumn leach
tests are being completed, as part of the overall program for the mineralization located east of the
mine site in the Heaps and Facnmes Areas.:

An access road was completed onto Heap Leach Pads #1 and #2. Samples from trenches were
submitted for independent metallurgical testing. In autumn 2007 a sonic drill program gathered
an addition of 20,000 Ibs of material from Pads #1, 2, 3 & 4. The results of these programs are
being compared with earlier waork on the heap pads. Previous studies which were not Ni-43-101
qualified indicated that a substantial amount of recoverable gold and silver may be present above
ground in these pads. The results of ongoing work are encouraging to date.

A goal of current work is to determine if Facilities Area gold and silver mineralization and the
mineralization in the Heap Pads at Sleeper can be blended as the basis of renewed heap
leaching operations at Sleeper. Resource calculations and metallurgical tests aimed at providing
independently verified answers to these questions are part of ongoing work.

The mine scale exploration targets described by Dr. Sillitoe will be tesled in series (NW, then SW,
etc). The program is operating efficiently and can be accelerated.

Drtlllng, engineering and report preparation should continue throughout 2008 with the goals of
defining base resources for the project and making a new breakthrough exploration discovery.

The Company has completed the sale of a 1% Net Smelter Production Royalty on the Sleeper
Gold Property to the Ken Snyder Gold Syndicate for US $1,500,000.

The mineral inventory for the Sleeper Gold Property located in Humboldt County, Nevada is
anticipated be the end of the third quarter, wilh caution that the time frame for the new NI-43-101
reporl is necessarily within the conlrol of independents who must be satisfied prior to signing off
on the inventory.

The cross-sections for West Wood, Facilities North and Facilities South have been completed.
They are the framework for the pending resource estimations for these areas. The database for
these areas includes over 600 drill holes. More than 71,000 ft of drilling was completed in 2007 to
facilitate the inventory.

Additionally a sonic drill program on the Heaps at Sleeper has provided new information to assist
discussion of above ground mineralized material at Sieeper. The goal of the pending minerat

Management Discussion and Analysis MD&A Page 4
{for the year ended March 31, 2008)



inventory is to report a Ni-43-101 reportable mineral inventory as a foundation for the Sleeper
Gold Project

Future Exploration

Exploration priorities for the Sleeper Gold Property are expected to focus on five priority mine
scale targets located near the Sleeper Mine. All five of the priority targets occur along three
structural corridors parallel to the Sleeper Mine historic mineralization. Ncne of the five targets
have been adequately tested in prior drill programs. Current and cngoing three-dimensional
modeling of geochemical data, additional geophysical interpretations and refinements and
detailed compilation on Gemcom and Gocad will help set drilling pricrities. However, the targets
are well defined at present. Drill testing is to involve angled drill hole fences with overlap at
bedrock depths. Drill orientation of these current targets is to be east-west to optimize crossing of
key structural trends. Each target shouid have 2-to 4.drill fences 1o test the target concepts.

The Company is committed to the success of the Sleeper Gold Project. We see the potential of
the Sleeper Gold District for new economic discoveries- as described in_Dr. Sillitoe's paper. A
realistic exploration budget to address the targets in Dr. Sillitoe’s .paper with the objective of
break-through discovery is estimated at US $15 million. ‘The minimum-next phase budget is
estimated at US $1.5 million. (See Outlook - Exploratlon Expenditures below)

Mill Creek/Goat Wrndow Gold Property B j .
The Mill Creek Go!d Property |s owned 100% by X Cal The property. Iocated in Lander County,
Nevada, is an eariy stage (grass roots). gold project.. The Milt Creek Gold Property is located in
an area where commercial gold deposils, such .as Piacer Dome s Cortez and Pipeline projects,
are known to occur. The area is also known as the “Cértez Area” within the Battle Mountain-
Cortez-Eureka Trend.. A US$1,600,000 exploration work program that included drilling, mapping,
sampling. and geophysucs has been completed by X-Cal on.the Mill Creek Gold Property.

Richard Redfern, M.Sc., a qualified person as.defined-by NI-43-101; has-provided the Company
with a NI-43-101 Technical Report on the' Mili Creek: Gold Property dated February 18, 2005,
which has been filed with regulators. Investors are encouraged to read the complete report for a
comprehensive view of this early stage gold project which is available on the SEDAR website
www.sedar.com and the Company's website www.x-cal.com.

The Company has completed an extensive permitting process for the Mill Creek (Goat Window)
Property which has resulted in approval of a Plan of Operations Permit. The permit will facilitate
the tesling of the targets described in the technical report. X-Cal will consider joint venture
partners for funding of continued work on this property.

Reese River/Horse Moun!ar'nl Window Property

The Company entered into a formal agreement with Placer Dome US (a subsidiary of Barrick
Gold) to jointly explore three claim blocks totaling. 3,000 acres in the Reese River Pediment,
Lander County, Nevada. Title of the claims was transferred from Placer Dome to the Company.
The Company agreed to carry out and fully fund a minimum US $200,000 drilling program,
developed by both-parties, within Year-One but prior to December 16, 2006. This deadline was
extended, by Placer Dome, to March 18, 2007, tUnder the terms of the agreement, Placer Dome
was granted a one time right to expend triple. the Company's expenditures in Years Two and
Three to earn back a 51% interest in the properties. X-Cal's expenditures for the above work
exceed the minimum required, and within the time allotted, under the agreement. Placer Dome
did not make the election to go forward under. the agreement and therefore, has forfeiled the right
to acquire a 51% interest in the property. - Placer Dome’s. mterest has now reverted to a 2% net
smelter return royalty.
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A NI-43-101 Technical Report titled “A Teéhr)ical Report on the Reese River/Horse Mountain
Project, November 14, 2006” was completed and filed.

During 2006 a gravity survey was completed and a otal of 64 new gravity stations were
surveyed. The gravity survey indicates a complex struclural setting composed of three major
structural zones. Geologic mapping supports the zones with correlating mapped faults and major
lithologic boundaries. An up-thrown block is interpreted at the zones' intersection with the
associated gravity high being potentially the result of lower plate carbonates. The structures and
the lower plate are both exploration targets.

Spring Valley Area

X-Cal has staked thirty-eight lode mineral claims in the Spring Valley Area, Pershing County,
Nevada. Dr. Ken Snyder provided land research to the Company which facilitated the staking.
Dr. Snyder has a 1% Net Smelter Return interest in the claims.

SUMMARY

The Sleeper Gold Project is the primary focus of the'Company. -

The Mill Creek (Goat Window) and the Reese River (Horse Mountain Window) Gold Projects are
both well located and documented projects situated over, favorable lower plate windows in the
Cortez Area of Nevada. X-Cal will seek joint venture partners for these properties.

The Spring Valley Project is a grass roots exploration project.

Results of Operations

X-Cal is in the business of exploring for, and where warranted, developing gold property interests.
The Company has no producing properties and consequently no sales or revenues.

The following table summarizes setected financial data from the Company'’s financial information
for the year ended March 31, 2008 and 2007.

Year Ended Yea} Ended
March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007

Total interest income and gain on sale of

assets $ 1772476 § . 274,440
Net income (loss) for the period $ 42,185 § {2,137,319)
Income (loss) per share $ 0.0003 $ (0.02)
Cash and term depaosits " § ) 148,686 $ 1,867,650
Total assets : 36,029,853 % 34,848,859
Total liabilities $ 1,135,646 $ 1,329,788
Total shareholders’ equity $ 34,894,207 % 33,519,071
Cash dividends per share $ Nil _ $ Nil
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During the year ended March 31, 2008, the Company recorded net.income of $42,185 or $0.0003
per common share (2007 ~ loss $2,137,319 or $0.02 per common share). This net income
includes the sale of a 1% Net Smelter Production Royalty on the Sleeper Gold Property to Dr.
Snyder's Gold Syndicate for US $1,500,000.

Interest income earned during the year ended March 31, 2008 was $156,736 (2007 — $238,723).

During the year ended March 31, 2008, the Company and Omineca Gold Ltd. reached an
agreement for Omineca to deliver a new core dril! and related equipment to the Company, and
also make a private placement into the Company in return for common shares at $0.35 per share.
The estimated value of the drill and related equipment is $350,000. Omineca’s private placement
into the Company was $150,000. The total transaction was valued at $500,000 in return for
1,428,571 common shares of the Company. A principal of Omineca is also a Company director
and officer.

Also during the year, the drill was subsequently sold for $350,000 on a vendor take back
arrangement with a term of 15 months and an 8% interest rate. Total interest and principal
payments expected after 15 months is $368,342, X-Cal retains a 2 year “first-call” on the drili
which will be operated by Black Hawk Drilling Inc. for X-Cal. .. ,

The following table outlines general and administrative expenditures attributable directly to the
Company and not capitalized in any property for the year ended March 31, 2008 and 2007.
" - . - i : ’ *

Years Ended

- March 31 .March 31

2008 2007
Accounting and audit 3 76,425 $ 104,940
- Amortization . : 24,279 . - 24,082
Equipment commissioning & testing 50,000 .
Insurance 292 487 303 040
Investor relations : 59,117 98,064
Legal : 62,229 50,743
Office and other _ 32,555 51,286
Regulatory fees 43,244 74,432
Rent 42 220 36,187
Salaries, consultants’ & directors’ fees 123,066 258,870
Shareholder communications 83,024 92,779
Stock-based compensation . 244,224 1,072,218
Telecommunications 1,415 31,688
Travel 99,416 127,156
1,233,701 2,325,485

General and administrative expenses for the year ended March 31, 2008 were $1,233,701 (2007
- $2,325,485). The Company recorded an overall decrease in costs due to a decrease in
accounting and legatl expenses as well as uncapitalized salaries, consultants’ and directors’ fees
and stock based compensation. The increase in equipment commissioning and testing is in
relation to the drill now being operated by Black Hawk Drilling Inc.

For the year ended March 31, 2008, X-Cal recorded income per share of $0.0003 (2007 - loss of
$0.02 per share) based on a basic weighted average number of shares outstanding of
125,511,379 (2007 — 116,632,601). Actual shares outstanding as at March 31, 2008 were
127,763,823 (2007 - 123,685,255) representing income per share of $0.0003 (2007 - loss per
share of $0.017).
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For the year ended March 31, 2008, X-Cal recorded a foreign exchange loss of $398,640 (2007 —

gain $12,288).

The foreign exchange loss posted in 2008 was largely due to fact the

Reclamation Bond - Commutation Account (Note 4) is carried in US dollars and the March 31,
2008 US dollar exchange rate dropped drastically compared 1o the March 31, 2007 rate. A
breakdown of this figure is as follows:

Reclamation bond - commutation account

Environmental bond

Reclamation and environmental obligation

Cash and term deposit

Accounts payable

Unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss)

Realized foreign exchange gain {loss)

Foreign exchange gain (loss)

2008 2007
(443,916) 4,814
(453) (342)
98,535 -
(10,155) (643)
(4,748) 447
(360,737) 4,276
(37,903) 8,012
(398,640) - 12,288

Qther differences between the amounts incurred in 2008 and 2007 reflect normal variances in
business activities from year to year.

Summary of Quarterly Results

The following is a summary of unaudited quarterly financial information for the Company’s fiscal
years (fiscal year ended March 31) as indicated.

2008
Interest Income
Net income (loss)

Income {loss) per share

2007

Interest Income

Net income (loss)
Income (loss) per sh_aré

2006

Interest Income

Net income (loss)
Income (loss) per share

2005
Interest Income
Net income (loss)

Income (loss) per share

1 QTR
$43 455

$1,135,350

$0.009

1* QTR
$10,792
($1,111,831)
($0.013)

1* QTR
$33,326
($234,993)
($0.003)

1° QTR
$45,099
($48,972)
($0.001)
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2" QTR

. $39,012
- ($244,358)

($0.002)

2" QTR
$32,016
($261,889)
(30.002)

2™ QTR
$23,632
($379,324)
($0.005)

2" QTR
$47,523
($558,961)
($0.007)

3 QTR
$8,884"

($293,293)

($0.002)

-3rd QTR

547,466
($239,827)

(80.002)

3" QTR
$35,143
($278,389)
($0.004)

37 QTR
$82,837
($641,670)
($0.008)

4" QTR
$65,365
($555,523)

(30.004)

4™ QTR
148,449
($523,772)

© ($0.003)

4" QTR
$15,038
($638,366)
($0.008)

4" QTR
$3,267
($538,939)
($0.007)

TOTAL
$156,736
$42,185
$0.0003

TOTAL
$238,723
($2,137,319)
($0.02)

TOTAL
$107,139
($1,531,072)
($0.02)

TOTAL
$178,726
($1,788,542)
($0.02)
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While the information set out in the foregoing table is mandated by National Instrument 51-102, it
is management’s view that the variations in financial results that occur from quarter to quarter are
not particularly helpful in analyzing the Company’s performance. It is in the nature of the
business of junior exploration companies that unless they sell a mineral interest for a sum greater
than the costs incurred in acquiring such interest, they have no significant net sales or lotal
revenue. Because the majority of our expenditures consist of exploration cosis that are
capitalized, our quarterly losses usually resuit from costs that are of a general and administrative
nature.

Significant variances in the Company’s reported loss from quarter to quarter most commonly
arise from three faciors that are difficult to anticipate in advance or to predict from past results: (i)
decisions to write off deferred exploration costs when management concludes that there has
been an impairment in the carrying value of a mineral property, or the property is abandoned, {ii)
the granting of incentive stock options, which results in the recording of amounts for ‘stock-based
compensation expense that can be quite large in relation to other general and' administrative
expenses incurred in any given quarter, and (iii) increased costs ‘direclly related to financing
activities of the Company.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at March 31, 2008, the Company had cash and short-term investments of $148, 686 {2007 -
$1,867,650). .

As at March 31, 2008, the Company had a Working éépital balance 6f $25,257 (2007 -
$1,560,327). The decrease in working capital reflects the increase in expenditures in mineral
exploration.

During the year ended March 31, 2008 the Company issued 3,028,568 common shares for gross
proceeds of $540,000 (2007 — 37,500,000 shares for $10,640,000) in private placements, issued
an additional 50,000 shares at a deemed value of $13,500 for property acquisition purposes
(2007 - 10,050,000 shares at a deemed value of $3,213,500), and issued an additional
1,000,000 shares at a deemed value of $350,000 for equipment acquisition purposes (2007 —
Nil); no common shares were issued for the exercise of options (2007 — Nil) so the Company
received no proceeds in 2008 (2007 — Nil); and the Company had no shares issued for the
exercise of warrants and accordingly received no proceeds (2007 — Nil).

Exploration and property costs during the year ended March 31, 2008 were $3,318,756 (2007 —
$3,843,095). Of that amount $3,246,541 (2007 — $3,445,077) was incurred on the Sleeper Gald
property. Additionally, $23,986 (2007 — $44,664) was spent on the Mill Creek Property. The
Company further incurred costs of $42,468 (2007 — $338,873) on the Reese River Property.
Additionally, the Company incurred costs of $5,761 for the Spring Valley Area Claims (2007 —
$14,481).
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Commitments
Office Lease

The Company leases office space in Vancouver and Nevada. The lease agreement for office
space in Vancouver expires in July 2009 and requires the Company to pay $25,632 annually as
its share of base rent ptus operating costs. The Vancouver lease will not be renewed. The
Company has sublet its Vancouver office space for the remainder of the term. The lease
agreement for office space in Nevada expires in November 2008 and will be renewed. The
Nevada office lease requires the Company to pay $18,000 annually as its share of base rent.

Management Agreements

The Company has entered into a five year Employment Agreement dated September 1, 2004
whereby it will pay an administrative manager $72,000 per annum. Currently, by mutual
agreement between the parties, the employee is receiving $36,000 per annum as payment in ful}
for services provided. Should the Company terminate the agreement or should the Company
have an effective change of control, it will be liable for payment of one year's salary at the full rate
of $72,000.

The Company has an employment contract with its President. Under the terms of that contract,
remuneration is reviewable on October 1 of each year, when such remuneraticn may- be
increased,- but not- decreased. The remuneration ‘for the President is $160,000 per annum.
Additionally, the contract provides that; in the event of termination by the Company, the President
shall receive three times the annual amount of salary in the year of termination plus US $150,000.

The Company entered:into an employment contract with an officer of the Company effective April
1, 2007 wheréby it will pay thé officer $66,000 per annum. Under the terms of the contract,
remuneration is reviewable on April 1 of each year, when such remuneration may be increased,
but not decreased. The contract provides that, in the event of termination by the Company, the
officer shal! receive two times the annual amount of salary in the year of termination.

Net Smelter Return Royalty

The Ken Snyder Gold Syndicate holds a 1% Net Smelter Production Royalty on the Sleeper Gold
Property. Dr. Snyder retains 1% NSR on the WR claims in the Spring Valley Area (lhIS royalty is
separate and unrelated to the syndicate which has 1% NSR at Sleeper). -

Related Party Transactions:

The Company paid legal fees and expenses of $23,130 (2007 - $34,193) to a law firm in which a
director of the Company is a partner; $7,236 (2007 - $8,335) which is included in accounts
payable. The Company paid an aggregate of $66,000 (2007 - $59,000) in consulting fees to a
director and officer of the Company, $11,550 (2007 - $nil) which is included in accounts payable.
The Company paid salaries of $160,000 (2007 - $160,000) to a director and officer of the
Company and $36,000 (2007 - $23,833) to a party related to a director and officer of the
Company. During the year ended March 31, 2007, a $150,000 bonus was paid to a director and
officer of the Company. As at March 31, 2008, $10,934 (2007 - $10,487) was due from a director
and officer of the Company with respect to travel advances, and is included in receivables and
prepayments.

The above transactions and balances are in the normal course of operations and are measured

at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the
related parties.
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The Company issued 1,000,000 common shares for equipment to a company with a common
director and officer. The common shares were valued at $350,000 ($0.35 per share), which was
the resale value of the equipment.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Significant Accounting Policies

For a detailed summary of the Company's significant accounting policies, the reader is directed to
Note 2 of the Notes to the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, March 31, 2008 and 2007,
available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and X-Cal U.S.A.
Inc., its wholly-owned integrated subsidiary and its. 100% interest in New Sleeper Gold LLC and
Sleeper Mining Company, LLC. .

Mineral Propertiéé

X-Cal has adopted the policy of deferring acquisition and exploration costs relating to its mineral
property interests. The.Company reviews the status of its mineral property interests on a regular
basis. Expendltures relaling 1o properties, which have. :been abandoned or are considered
uneconomic in ‘the foreseeable future, are written .off. Had the Company adopted a policy of
expensing all exploration costs. in, the. period they - -were incurred;, X-Cal's asset base,
shareholders' equity,.and loss for the. year would be materlally different,

When properties -are acquired under agreements requiring future acquisition payments to be
made at the sole. dlscretlon of the Company,.those future payments, whether in cash or shares,
are recorded.only when the Company has made or becomes obligated to make the payment or
issue the shares. - . .+ . .

When properties are sold under agreements requiring future purchase payments to be made at
the sole discretion of the purchaser, those fulure payments, whether in cash or shares, are
recorded only when the purchaser has made or becomes obligated to make the payment or to
issue the shares.

Reclamation and Environmental Costs

The Company is subject to the laws and regulations relating to environmental matters in
jurisdictions in which it operates, including those relating to property reclamation, discharge of
hazardous material and other matters. The Company may also be held liable should
environmental problems be discovered that were caused by former owners and operators of ils
existing properties and properties in-which it previously had an interest,

The Company recogmzes the fair value of its reclamatlon and environmental obligations in the
fi nanmal statements as a liability in the period in which the obllgatlon is assumed on acquisition or
is incurred in exploration of propertles The fair value of the liability is initialty recorded at the
discounted value of expected future cash outlays to satisfy the obligations, with a corresponding
increase to mineral property interests, The liability is adjusted at the end of each period to reflect
changes in the present value of the estimated future cash outlays underlying the obligation. The
Company records that increase in the carrying amount of the obligation as accretion expense.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation expense using the fair value based
method with respect to all stock-based payments to directors, employees, and non-employees,
including awards that are direct awards of stock and call for settiement in cash or other assets, or
stock appreciation rights that call for settlement by the issuance of equity instruments. Under this
method, stock-based payments are recorded as an expense over the vesting period or when the
awards are granted, with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus under shareholders’
equity. When stock options are exercised, the corresponding fair value is transferred from
contributed surplus to capital stock.

Financial Instruments

The Company has various financial instruments including cash, deposits, receivables, and
payables and accruals. The carrying value of all financial instruments approximates their fair
values. o ‘ :

1. Fair value

The Company’s financial instruments include cash and term deposits, receivables,
reclamation bond — commutation account, environmental bonds, and accounts payable
and accrued liabilities. Cash and term deposits are designated as held-for-trading;
receivable are designated as loans and receivables; reclamation bond — commutation
account and environmental bonds are classified as held-to-maturity; and accounts
payable and accrued liabilities are classified as other financia! liabitities.

Prior to the adoption of Section 385, the carrying values of cash and-term deposits,
receivables, and accounts payables and accrued liabilities approximated their fair values
because of the short-term maturity of these financial instruments. The reclamation bond
approximated its fair value as it earns interest at market rates. :

2. Interest rate risk

The Compa‘hy is not exposed to significant interest rate price risk due to the short-term
maturity of its monetary assets and liabilities.

3. Creditrisk

The Company’s financial assets-that are expoced to credit risk consist primarily of cash
and term deposits, and receivables. The Company’s cash and term deposits are held at
major Canadian and US financial institutions. The Company maintains provisions for
potential credit losses for its receivables, and any losses to date have been within
management’'s expectations.

4. Foreign currency risk
The Company incurs exp_enditurés in both Canadian and US dollars and obtains
financing in Canadian dollars. Therefore, the Company is exposed to foreign currency
risk. The Company does not use derivative instruments to mitigate that risk.

5. Derivatives

The Company has obligations related to certain carried interest rights and net smelter
royalties, the value of which is derived from future events and commodity prices. These
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rights are derivative instruments. However, the mineral interests to which they relate are
not sufficiently developed to reasonably determine value.

Outlook
Exploration Expenditures

The golfd production industry continues to face the need for reserve replacement. The Company
has assembled and documented the Sleeper Gold Project over a period of years beginning with
the first land acquisitions in the area in December 1993, The Sleeper Joint Venture, New Sleeper
Gold LLC {50% X-Cal/50% New Sleeper Gold Corporation) generated a large volume of new data
which has been incorporated into the overall picture at Sleeper.,

X-Cal successfully acquired the 50% interest that New Sleeper Gold Corporation held in the
Sleeper Joint Venture. The Company is now solely responsible for continued exploration of the
property and has assembled an experienced team of professionals to carry on current exploration
programs as recommended in the NI-43-101 Technical Report (March 2006). The Company
budgeted $1.3 million for implementation of its exploration program. The Company is continuing
to seek to raise additional financing to fund the recommendations in the NI-43-101 Technical
Report (March 2006).

The Mill Creek Gold Property is located in the Co.rte'z'Joint Venture Area of Nevada where Placer
Dome Inc. has announced new discoveries.- The general area is now the subject of increased
exploration actlwty by several major and junior companies.

As part of forward planning for the Mill Creek Property, X-Cal has received approval of a Plan of
Operations permli which will allow for comprehensive drill testing of the property The Plan of
Operatlons will faciiitate continued exploratlon in the future.

The Reese River agreement between the Company and Placer Dome US (a subsidiary of Barrick
Gold) allows for work programs that are based on recommendations of a technical team
composed of both Placer Dome and the Company's personnel. The December 16, 2006 deadline
for the Company’s commitment to fund a US $200,000 drilling program was extended, by Placer
Dome, to March 16, 2007. X-Cal exceeded the required minimum in the agreement within the
time frame and notified Placer Dome that the expenditures have been made. Flacer Dome's
interest has now reverted to a 2% net smelter returns royalty.

X-Cal has staked thirty-eight lode mineral claims in the Spring Valley Area, Pershing County,
Nevada. Dr. Ken Snyder provided land research to the Company which facililated the staking.
Or. Snyder retains 'a 1% Net Smelter Return mterest in the cla|ms

Potential for Corporate Developments

The Company is continually evaluating potential transactions and corporate opportunities which
could improve the Company’s relative position, either by exposing it to prospective new areas, or
by seeking alliances or partnerships in order to investigate its properties more cost effectively.
This could include the addition of new properties via acquisitions, mergers or joint ventures, or the
seeking out of corporate partners. The company currenlly has several active data sharing
agreements in place, as per the above mentioned objectives. .
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Risks and Uncertainties
Risks related to the Mining Exploration industry Generally

The Company is a gold exploration company and is exposed to a number of risks and
uncertainties that are common to other companies in the mineral exploration business. The
exploration for, and of, mineral deposits invoives significant financial risks over an extended
period of time. There is no guarantee that even with careful geological evaluation, experience
and knowledge that the Company will be successful in its search or that expenditure of funds will
result in the discovery of an economic mineral deposit.

Risk associated with Mineral Tenure Rights

Although the Company has taken steps to verify. title to its mineral property interests in
accordance with industry standards, these procedures do not guarantee the Company's title.
Property title may be subject to unreglstered prior agreements and non-compliance with
regulatory requirements. :

Uninsured Risks

The Company maintains insurance tc protect it against certain risks: related to. its current
operations in amounts 1hat it believes are-reasonable depending.upon the circumstances
surrounding each identified risk. The Company may elect, however, not to insure against certain
risks due to high premiums or for various other reasons. In the course of exploration,
development and- production of mineral properties, certain risks, and in particular, unexpected or
unusual geological operating conditions, fire, flooding and. earthquakes may, occur. It.is not
always possible to fully insure against such risks as.a result of high premiums or other. reasons.,
Should such liabilities arise, there could result increasing costs and a decline in the value of the
Company's securities.

Competition

The Company competes with other mining companies that have substantially greater financial
and technical resources for the acquisition of mineral concessions, as well as for the recruitment
and retention of qualified employees, contractors and other advisors with technical skills and
experience in the mining industry. There can be no assurance that the Company will continue to
attract and retain skilled employees, contractors and technical advisors. S

Management

The Company currently has a small executive management group, which is sufficient for its
present stage of development. The Company has relied, and will continue to rely, upon a
number of consultants and others for operating expertise. The Company’s development to date
has largely depended and in the future will continue to depend 'upon the efforts of current
executive management. The loss of a member of this group-coutd have a material adverse effect
onthe Company

Requirement for Further Financing

The Company is dependent upon equity financing to continue to fund its exploration activities and
general operations. The Company’s funding needs may vary depending upon results obtained,
from current exploration activities: The Company's ability to raise future capital will be in part
affected by capital markets and market prices for gold. There is no assurance that such
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additional financing will be available. Please refer to subsequent event notes for private
placements completed subsequent to the year end.

Outstanding Share Data as at March 31, 2008

The Company has unlimited share capital of common shares of no par value. Of this, the
Company had 127,763,823 shares outstanding as of March 31, 2008 or 137,873,823 shares on a
fully diluted basis. As at the date hereof, the total number of shares outstanding is 136,926,323
due to an additional 9,162,500 issued in a private placement after the year end.

Date Type No. of Deemed or Issue | Gross Proceeds
shares Price per share to Company

March 31, 2007 Cpening balance 123,685,255 .. . ,

June 1, 2007 Private Placement 428,571 | $0.35 $150,000

June 1,2007 Equipment Acquisition 1,000,000 | $0.35. -, .. | $350,000'"

June 29, 2007 Property Acquisition - . 50,000 | $0.27 - : $13,500"

January 7, 2008 Private Placement - 2,699,997 {.$0.15 . . . | $390,000

March 31, 2008 Total 127,763,823 SRR I

(1) deemed value, no cash received by the Company. B

The Company had 1,825,000 stock options granted, and 675,000 expired or canceled during the
year. There are 10,110,000 stock options'currentiy outstanding under the Company's incentive
stock option plan(s) with exercnse prices: rangang from $0 20 $0 50 with exp1ry dates ranging to
March 23 2012, ‘

As at the year end date, the Company had no ex:stm g warrants outstanding.- Subs equent to the
year end, included ‘with each share of the private placement for 8,062,500 shares, was one
common share purchase warrant and each warraht entitling the holder to purchase an additional
common share of X-Cal at a price of $0.10 per share for a period of one year.

If the Company were to issue all 10,110,000 shares issuable upon exercise of all incentive stock
options outstanding, it would raise $3,450,250.

Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

The Chief Execulive Officer (CEOQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of X-Cal Resources Ltd. are
responsible for designing internal controls over financial reporting or causing them to be designed
under their supervision in order to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporiing and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with Canadian GAAP. They have designed controls for this process and have
conducted an evaluation which has identified certain weaknesses in the controls. Due to the
limited number of staff at the Company, there is a.potential weakness in the system of internal
controls due to the Company’s inability to achieve total appiopriate segregation of duties. In
order to reduce this risk, additional contracted professionals are used on a regular basis by the
Company. These additional contractors possess technical knowledge in the areas of accounting,
legal, and Canadian/US taxation. These additional resources of the Company also increase the
likelihood that complex and non-routine accounting transactions will be identified and recorded in
accordance with Canadian GAAP. While Management and the Board of Directors out-source
technical expertise where necessary to mitigate the risk of material misstatement, the Company
does not have totat assurance that this risk can be reduced to a remote likelihood of a material
misstatemenl. The Company continuously reviews and evaluates its processes to further
strengthen its system of internal controls The Company believes that an adequate control
environment exists at this time. . Ceo
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There were no significant changes in the Company's internal controls or, to the knowledge of
management, in other factors that could significantly affect the disclosure controls and
procedures subsequent to the date that this evatuation was carried out.

Mutltilateral Instrument 52-109 Disclosure

Disclosure controls and procedures have been designed to ensure the accuracy and timely filing
of periodic financial reports as well as the disclosure of material information in accordance with
securities regulations. Responsibilities for preparing, reviewing in advance, and releasing
periodic reports, press releases and proxy statements have been assigned tc members of the
audit committee, Board of Directors, the comptroller, staff and other qualified persons. The
Company has set oul general disclosure guidelines dealing with the determination of material
information and circumstances when assistance from outside legal counsel is required.

Items Subsequent to Period-End

Private placement

The Company completed a private placement of 1,100,000 of its common shares to fund ongoing
mineral exploration on the Company’s properties. A director of the Company purchased 500,000
shares of this private placement.

The Company completed a private placement of 8,062,500 units, each unit consisting of one
common share and one common share purchase warrant entitling the holder to purchase one
additional common share at a price of $0.10 per share for a period of one year. Directors of the
Company purchased 1,750,000 units of this private placement.

The Company issued the following shares subsequent to the year-end:

Date Type No. of shares Issue Price Gross
Per Share Proceeds to
Company
April 4, 2008 Private 1,100,000 $0.15 $ 165,000
Placement
June 11, 2008 Private 8,062,500 $0.08 $ 645,000
Placement

Mineral property interests claim fees

All Annual Government Claim Fees for the company's Nevada Mineral Claims: Sleeper, Mill
Creek, Reese River and Spring Valley have been paid to September 1 2009.

Additional Information

Additional information regarding X-Cal is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS i
(for the three months ended June 30, 2008)

This period end Management Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") reviews the operating results
and financial position of X-Cal Resources Ltd. {*X-Cal” or the “Company”) and compares the
financial results for the first quarter ending June 30, 2008 with those of the corresponding quarter
of 2007. itis also an update to the Company’s annual MD&A for the year ended March 31, 2008
and should be read in conjunction with the June 30, 2008 Consolidated Financial Statements and
related notes. The reader is encouraged to review the Company's financial statements in
conjunction with this document, copies of which are filed on the SEDAR website at
www.sedar.com.

The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in Canada (“Canadian GAAP"). All dollar figures included therein and in the
following discussion and analysis are quoted in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted.

The information in this Management Discussion and Analysis contains forward-looking
statements. These statements are subject 1o certain risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those included in the forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements are made as of August 1, 2008.

All references to “2009" refer to the three months ending June 30, 2008, and all references to
“2008" refer to the three months ended June 30, 2007, unless otherwise noted.

General

The Company is an active resource exploration company focused on the identification and
delineation of gold and silver mineral resources on its Sieeper Gold, Mill Creek, and Spring Valley
properties in Nevada, USA. Under the terms of an agreement with Placer Dome US (a subsidiary
of Barrick Gold) the Company has acquired a fourth Nevada gold property, the Reese River
Pediment project.

The Company depends on private placements and joint ventures to fund its corporate activities.
These proceeds are used for investigation and appraisal of targeted mineral zones on its
concessions, the administration and maintenance of the Company's operations, and compliance
with all regulatory requirements.

The gold industry must replace its reserves regularly. Nevada is one area where the investment
in infrastructure has already been made. Nevada is a prime location for reserve replacement
where low cash cost ounces have historically been found. Higher gold prices, if they occur, would
be a bonus. Nevada, in lerms of geology and resources, political risk and cost-efficiency, is a
practical area in which to focus exploration activity. Therefore the Company concentrates the
majority of its time, effort, and resources on mineral exploration opportunities in this gold
producing state.

The Company's mandate is to develop its gold properlies. Management, directors and
consultants are applying their combined experience and experiise to exploration of the
Company’s Nevada gold properties.

Funding the Company’s exploration work programs is dependent on certain factors, not all of
which are under the Company’s control. The general liguidity of the markets, which are in tumn
dependent on the price of gold and other commodities, is a major factor affecting the Company’s
on-going objectives.
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The potential profitability of the Sleeper, Mill Creek, Reese River and Spring Valley Area Gold
Projects and other gold mining projects is dependent upbn the market price of gold, silver and
other concentrates produced and changes in currency exchange rates of the Canadian and
United States dollars. The prices of precious and base metals and currency exchange rates have
fluctuated significantly and are affected by riumerous factors beyond the Company’s control,
including but not limited to, international economic and political conditions, global and regional
consumption patterns, speculative trading activities, levels of supply and demand, availability and
costs of metal substitutes, metal stock levels maintained by producers and others, inventory
carrying costs and inflation and interest rates. These factors affect the price of precious and base
metals and therefore the economic viability of the Company's mining interests, and they cannot
accurately be predicted.

Sleeper Gold Property

Note: All references to years, 2008 — 2007 — 2008, refer to work programs carried out within the
calendar year. '

The Sleeper Gold Property includes a historic open pit mine operated by AMAX Gold from 1986
until 1896, which produced 1.66 million ounces of gold and 2.3 million ounces of silver. The
property has been the subject of several exploration programs. These programs have produced
an extensive database for current exploraticn targeting and continuing studies.

The Sleeper Gold Project is a 30 square' mile gold district located in Humboldt County, Nevada.
A 50% interest in the Sieeper Gold Project was acquired by New Sleeper Gold Corporation, a
publicly traded reporting issuer, in return for providing initial funding to the New Steeper Gold LLC
joint venture {the “Sleeper Joint Venture") {50% X-Cal/50% New Sleeper Gold Corporation). A
National Instrument 43-101-compliant technical report was submitted by.each party. The
technical reports are available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

The Company contributed its interest in the Sleeper Gold Project to the Sleeper Joint Venture and
New Sleeper Gold Corporation capitafized the Sleeper Joint Venture with US $20,000,000. The
Sieeper Joint Venture company treasury was independent of both companies and was managed
on behalf of the Sleeper Joint Venture by New Sleeper Gold Corporation.

X-Cal acquired the 50% interest from New Sleeper Gold. Corporation {now Reunion Geld
Corporation) in the Sleeper Joint Venture on May 16, 2006. The Company paid CDN $5,000,000
and delivered 10 million common shares at a deemed value of $0.32 per share ($3,200,000), with
resale restrictions attached. The Company now owns 100% of New Sleeper Gold LLC.

Title of the York Leased Lands, which are part of the Sleeper Gold Project, has been signed over
to X-Cal concurrent with a buy out agreement between the Company and York Mines. The buy
out was initiated with a payment to York Mines consisting of US $150,000 and 50,000 common
shares. To complete the buyout, a further US $600,000 and 200,000 common shares of X-Cal
was required. Payment can be made as four equal payments over four years, or accelerated at
the Company’s discretion. At the date of this report, the remaining balance 1o complete this
buyout is US $450,000 and 150,000 common shares of X-Cal.

The exploration program for the years 2004 through early 2006 included drilling of 82,240 feet of
core and reverse circulation drilling in 2004, and 22,524 feet of core and reverse circulation
drilling in 2005. Extensive exploration targeting studies and surveys were initiated and
substantially completed late in the two year program. The results of the studies established a
better definition of exploration targets.

The Company assembled a panel of professionals to review the Sleeper Gold Project and to
make recommendations for ongoing work. Two of the independent panel members, Dr. Richard
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Sillitoe and Dr. Jeffrey Hedenquist, provided the Company with their expert views in the form of:
“Observations on the Sleeper Gold Project, Nevada by Dr. Jeffrey Hedenquist (December, 2005)
and a separate paper "Exploration Potentlal “of the Sleeper Project, Nevada” by Dr. Richard H.
Sillitoe (January, 2006). These 'papers are ‘not’NI-43-101 reports and should be considered a
supplement to NI-43-101 documents for the prolect

A detailed NI-43-101 Technical Report (March 2008) authored by Robert E. Thomason, M.Sc.,

L.Geo. and co-authored by Lan’y Kornze, B.Sc..P.E. and Winthrop A. Rowe, M.Sc..C.P.G.
reviewed all previous work on the property’ 'The report estab!lshed the basis for determination of
drill target areas. '

Both Dr, Sillitoe's report and the NI-43-101 Technical Report (March 2006) were filed on SEDAR.
Dr. Jeffrey Hedenquist's report was not filed on SEDAR but can be found in its entirety at the
Company's website at www.x-cal.com.

A combination of definition and exploration drilling is ongoing at Sleepe’r.'

From August 2006 to November 2006 ten reverse-circulation {RC) drill holes totaling 10,805 feet
were completed in the Range Front Target. This is a structural zone that |s +3 miles in length,
Iocated parallel and to the east of the Sleeper Mine S:te

In December 2006 drilling moved to the Facilities Area. This is a mineralized zone east of the
previously mined pit under the now reclaimed AMAX mill and crusher location. During 2006 two
RC holes were completed for 1,460 feet and two core holes were dnlled tolaling 1,405 feet.

From January to the end of March 2007 twenty-one RC holes totaling 12, 865 feet and two core
holes totaling 1,330 feet were completed in the Facilities Area. From the_end of March 2007 to
the end of June 2007, twenty-seven RC holes totaling 17,165 feet and five core holes totaling
2,768 feet were completed in the Facilities Area.

A recent break-through in geologic'Lndérstanding has significant implications for the modeling of
and possible future- mlrung of the Facmtres Area. Detailed examination of core indicates a low-
angle stratigraphic unit that appears to control mineralization. This was not recognized previously
in the reverse-circulation (chip-type) drilling.” Gold and silver values can bé placed within' the
“stratigraphic layer on repeated assay data cross-sections. The strata can be projected east, up-
dip to the range front break and located there on“the surface. The western projection passes
underneath the mine pit, through slgnlflcant areas of no data. Geologic cross-sections that reflect
the revised Sleeper Geology are being submitted to Mine Development Associates as framework
for the pending resource-calculations.

There is much work to be done, but tfie tonnage and low strip ratio implications for the Facilities
Area are encouraging. Other target areas may be re-drilled in light of the new interpretation.
Readers are further encouraged to view the Company's news releases which include plan maps
and assay results available 'on the X-Cal Resources Ltd. website at www.x-cal.com and on the
SEDAR website at www.sedar.com.

The West Wood Breccia Area is a zone of hydrothermal brecciation and veining located
immediately southwest of the main open pit at the Sleeper Mine. Previous work outlined a
mineralized area approximately 800 feet (250 meters) long and 320 feet (100 meters) wide.
Earlier high-grade intercepts at West Wood can be reviewed in the NI-43-101 Technical Report
for the property available at www.x-cal.com or on SEDAR. Highlight assays are contained in the
2007 X-Cal Annual Report. Al West Wood drilling is in-filling the zone of mineralization and
expanding it, both to the south and west. From January to the end of March 2007 two core holes
totaling 1,691 feet and one RC for 1,560 feet were completed. From the end of March 2007 to

1
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the end of June 2007 two RC holes totaling 2,621 feet and four core holes totaling 4,352 feet
were completed in the West Wooed Breccia Area.

An indication of a possibly deeper zone located directly underneath the known high-grade
mineralization will also continue to be tested (see March 8, 2007 press release).

The NW target is located north-west of the pit, approximately 1,500 meters north of West Wood. It .
is one of the areas where exploration with the objective of a breakthrough new discovery is in
progress. The January 2006 paper "Exploration Potential of the Sleeper Prolect by Dr. Richard
Sillitoe describes this and five olher priority exploration targets .

Current drilling in the NW area has encountered a silicified sulphide breccia. In the period from
January to the end of March 2007 four core holes totaling 4,228 feet were completed in the NW
area. From a geological perspective the hydrothermal alteration is apparent and encouraging.
Drill testing of this area will continue.

X-Cal has prepared a bulk sample from the above ground heap materials on which column leach
tests are being completed, as part of the overall program for the mineralization located east of the
mine site in the Heaps and Facilities Areas.

An access road was completed onto Heap Leach Pads #1 and #2. Samples from trenches were
submitted for independent metallurgical testing. In autumn 2007 a sonic drill program gathered
an addition of 20,000 |bs of material from Pads #1, 2, 3 & 4. The results of these programs are
being compared with earlier work on the heap pads. Previous studies which were not NI-43-101
qualified indicated that a substantial amount of recoverable gold and silver may be present above
ground in these pads. The results of ongoing work are encouraging to date.

A goal of current work is to determine if Facilities Area gold and silver mineralization and the
mineralization in the Heap Pads at Sleeper can be blended' as the :basis of renewed heap
leaching operations at Sleeper.. Resource calculations and metallurgical tests aimed at providing
independently verified answers to these questions are part of ongoing work.

The mine scale exploration tar‘ge.ts described by Dr. Sillitoe will be tested in series (NW, then SW,
etc). The program is operating efficiently and can be accelerated.

Drilling, engineering and report preparatlon should continue throughout 2008 with the goals of
defining base resources for the project and maklng anew breaklhrough exploratlon discovery.

The Company has completed the sale of a 1% Net Smelter Production Royalty on the Sleeper
Gold Praperty to the Ken Snyder Gold Syndicate for US $1,500,000.

The mineral inventory for the Sleeper Gold Property located in Humboldt County, Nevada is
anlicipated by the end of the second quarter, with caution that the time frame for the new NI-43-
101 report is within the control of independents who must be satisfied prior to signing off on the
inventory.

The cross-sections for West Wood, Facilities North and Facilities South have been completed.
They are the framework for the pending resource estimations for these areas. The database for
these areas includes over six-hundred drill holes. More than 71,000 fi of drilling was completed in
2007 to facilitate the inventory.

Additionally a sonic drill program on the Heaps at Sleeper has provided new information to assist
discussion of above ground mineralized material at Sleeper. The goal of the pending mineral
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inventory is to report a NI-43-101 repontable mmeral lnventory as a foundation for the Sleeper
Gold Project .

Future Exploration C S

Exploration priorities for the Sleeper Gold Property are expected to focus on five priority mine
scale targets located near the Sleeper Mine. Al five of the priority targets occur along three
structural corridors parallel to the Sleeper Mine historic mineralization. None of the five targets
have been adequately tested in prior drill programs. Currént and ongoing three-dimensional
modeling of geochemical data, additional geophysical interpretations and refinements and
detailed compifation on Gemcom and Gocad will help set drilling pricrities. However, the targets
are well” defined at present. Drill testing.is-to involve angled. drill hole fences with overlap at
bedrock depths. Drill orientation of these current targets is to be east-west to optimize crossing of
key structural trends: Each target should have two to four drill fences to test the target concepts

The Company is committed to the success of the Sleeper Gold Prolect We see the potential of
the Sieeper Gold Disfrict for new economic .discoveries as described in Dr. Sillitoe's paper. A
realistic exploration budget to address the targets in Dr. Sillitoe’s: paper with the objective of
break-through discovery is estimated at US $15 million. The minimum-next phase budget is
estimated at US $1.5 million. (See Qutlook — Exploration Expenditures below)

mill Creek/Goat Window Gold Property .

The Milt Creek Gold Property is owned 100% by X-Cal. The property Iocated in Lander County,
Nevada, is an early stage (grass roots) gold project. The Mill Creek Gold Property is located in
an area where commercial gold deposits, such as Placer Dome's Cortez and.Pipeline -projects,
are known to occur. The area is also known as the “Cortez Area” within the Battle Mountain-
Cortez-Eureka Trend. A US $1,600,000 exploration work program that included drilling, mapping,
sampling and geophysics has been completed by-X-Cal on the Mill Creek.Gold Property.

Richard Redfern, M.Sc., a qualified person as defined by NI-43-101, has provided the Company
with a NI-43-101 Technical Report on the Mill Creek Gold Property dafed-February 18, 2005,
which has been filed with regulators. Investors are encouraged to read the complete report for a
comprehensive view of this early stage gold project which is available on the SEDAR website
www.sedar.com and the Company's website www, x-cal.com. -

The Company has completed an extensive permitting process for the Mill Creek {Goal Window)
Property which has resultéd in approval of a'Plan of Operations Permit. The permit will facilitate
the testing of the targets described in the technical report.” -X-Cal will consider joint venture
partners for funding of continued work on this property.

Reese River/Horse Mountain Window Property

The Company entered into a formal ‘agreement with Placer Dome US (a subsidiary of Barrick
Gold) to jointly explore three claim :blocks totaling 3,000 acres in the Reese River Pediment,
Lander County, Nevada. Title of the claims was transferred from Placer Dome to the Company.
The Company agreed to carry out and fuily fund a minimum US $200,000 drilling program,
developed by both parties, . within Year Cne_but prior to December 16, 2006. This deadline was
extended, by Placer Dome, to March 16, 2007. Under the terms of the agreement, Placer Dome
was granted a one time right to expend triple the Company's expenditures in Years Two and
Three to eamn back a 51% interest in the properties. X-Cal's expenditures for the above work
exceed the minimum required, and within the time allotted, under the agreement. Placer Dome
did not make the election to go forward under,the agreement and therefore, has forfeited the right
to acquire a 51% interest in the property. Placer Dome’s interest has now reverted to a 2% net
smelter return royalty.
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A NI-43-101 Technical Report titled “A Technical Report on the Reese River/Horse Mountain
Project, November 14, 2006” was completed and fited.

During 2006 a gravity survey was completed and a total of sixty-four new gravity stations were
surveyed. The gravity survey indicates a complex structural setting composed of three major
structural zones. Geologic mapping supports the zones with correlating mapped faults and major
lithclogic boundaries. An up-thrown block is interpreted at the zones' intersection with the
associated gravity high being potentially the result of lower plate carbonates. The structures and
the lower plate are beth exploration targets.

Spring Valley Area .

X-Cal has staked thirty-eight lode mineral claims in the Spring Valley Area, Pershing County,
Nevada. Dr. Ken Snyder provided land research to the Company which facilitated the staking.
Dr. Snyder has a 1% Net Smelter Return interest in the claims.

SUMMARY

The Steeper Gold Project is the primary focus of the Company.

The Mill Creek (Goat Window) and the Reese River (Horse Mountain Window) Gold Projects are
both well located and documented projects situated over favorable lower plate windows in the
Cortez Area of Nevada. X-Cal will seek joint venture partners for these properties.

The Spring Valley Project is a grass roots exploration project.

Results of Operations

X-Cal is in the business of exploring for, and where warranted, developing gold property interests.
The Company has no producing properties and consequently no sales or revenugs. -

The following table summanzes selected financial data from the Company's financial information
for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007.

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
Total ir)terest income and gain on sale of .
assels : ) _ 32,852 % 1,635,195
Net income (loss) for the period 5 {188,151) $ 1,135,359
Income {loss) per share $ {0.001) $ 0.009
Cash and term deposits $ 305,135 $ 1,927,695
Total assets 5 36,438,668 § 36,772,793
Total liabilities $ 1,062,203 § 1,462,849
Total shareholders’ equity $ 35,376,464 § 35,309,844
Cash dividends per share $ Nil $ Ni
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During the three months ended June 30, 2008, the Company recorded net loss of $188,151 or
$0.001 per common share (2007 — mcome $1,135,359 or $0.009 per common share). The
income for 2008 includes the sale of a’ 1% Nét Smelter Producllon Royalty on the Sleeper Gold
Property to Dr. Snyder’s Gold Syndlcate for US $1 500 000 ' .

Interest income earned during the three months ended June 30 2008 was $31,782 (2007 -
$43,455). - - *
The following table outlines general and administrative expenditures attributable directly to the
Company and not capitalized in any property for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and
2007.

. ) . R - KRN

... ... . Three Months Ended-

June 30 i - June 30
2008 2007

Accounting and audit $ 14,500 $ 12,500
Ameortization ) . 5,396 vt 5001
Equipment commissioning & testmg 50,000
Insurance - e . : ff70 817 s R T 74,609
Investor relations . . e o’ T 28,865
Legal - . --13 693' Tt 0:1119,834
Office and other 8,966 9,414
Regulatory fees o 20,326 wens, 14,271
Rent 11,574 6,547
Salaries, consultants' & directors’ fees 34,027 T 44,319
Shareholder communications 2,840 14,866
Stock-based compensation - oo ce 7,488 sl w0 142,014
Telecommunications o aln T T 01296 .. -~ L7 1,884
Travel 9,857 52,035

S 200,748 - -~ 477,050

General and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2008 were $200,748
{2007 - $477,059). The Company recorded an overall decrease in costs due to a decrease in
stock-based compensation, mvestor relatiohs, equipment commissioning and testing, and travel
expenses.

For the three months ended June 30, 2008, X-Cal recorded losses per share of $0.001 (2007 -
income of $0.009 per share) based on a basic weighted average number of shares outstanding of
130,618,823 (2007 - 124,146,683). Actual shares outstanding as at June 30, 2008 were
136,926,323 (2007 — 125,163,826) representing income per share of $0.001 (2007 - loss per
share of $0.009).

For the three months ended June 30, 2008, X-Cal recorded a foreign exchange loss of $137
(2007 ~ gain $4,574).

Other differences between the amounts incurred in 2008 and 2007 reflect normal variances in
business activities from year to year.
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Summary of Quarterly Results

The following is a summary of unaudited quarterly financial |nformat|on for the Company’s fiscal
years (fiscal year ended March 31) as indicated.

2009 1'QTR 2™ QTR 3“QTR 4"QTR  TOTAL
Interest Income - $31,782 '. - $31,782
Net income {loss) ($188,151) ’ ($188,151)
Income (loss) per share  ($0.001) ‘ ($0.001)
2008 1" QTR 2" QTR 3“ QTR 4" QTR TOTAL
Interest Income $43,455 $39,012 $8,884 $65,385 $156,736
Net income (loss) $1,135350  ($244,358)  ($293,293) ($555,523) $42,185
Income (loss) per share  $0.009 ($0.002) ($0.002) {$0.004) $0.0003
2007 1 QTR 2" QTR 3 QTR 4" QTR TOTAL
Interest Income $10,792 $32,016 . $47,466 148,449  $238,723
Net income {loss) (31,111,831) ($261,889)  ($239,827) ($523,772) ($2,137,319)
Income (loss) per share  ($0.013) ($0.002) ($0.002) ($0.003) (30.02)

While the information set out in the foregoing table is mandated by Nationa! Instrument 51-102, it
is management’s view that-the variations in financial. results that occur from quarter to quarter are
notl particularly helpful in analyzing the Company’s performance. I is in the nature of the
business of junior exploration companies that unless they sell a mineral.interest for a sum greater
than the costs incurred in acquiring such interest, they have no significant net sales or tota!
revenue. Because the majority of our expenditures consist of exploration costs that are
capitalized, our quarterly losses usually result from costs that are of a general and administrative
nature. -

Significant variances in the Company's reported loss from quarter to quarter most commonly
arise from three factors that are difficult to anticipate in advance or to predict from past results: (i)
decisions to wiite off deferred exploration costs when management concludes that there has
been an impairment in the carrying value of a mineral property, or the property is abandoned, (ii)
the granting of incentive stock options, which results in the recording of amounts for stock-based
compensation expense that can be quite large in relation to other general and administrative
expenses incurred in any given quarter, and (i) increased costs directly related to financing
activities of the Company.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at June 30, 2008, the Company had cash and short-term investments of $305,135 (200? -
$1,927,695).

Management Discussion and Analysis MD&A Page 8
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As at June 30, 2008, the Company had a working capital balance of $222,750 (2007 —
$1,837,505). The decrease in working capital reflects the increase in expenditures in mineral
exploration.

During the three months ended June 30, 2008 the Company issued 9,162,500 common shares
for gross proceeds of $810,000 (2007 — 428,571 shares for $150,000) in private placements, no
shares were issued for property acquisition purposes {2007 — 50,000 shares at a deemed value
of $13,500), and no shares were issued for equipment acquisition purposes (2007 — 1,000,000
shares at a deemed value of $350,000); no common shares were issued for the exercise of
options {2007 - Nil} so the Company received no proceeds in 2008 {2007 — Nil); and the -
Company had no shares issued for the exercise of warrants and accordingly received no.
proceeds (2007 — Nil).

Exploration and property costs during the three months ended June 30, 2008 were $440,457
(2007 - $1,600,926). Of that amount $433,547 (2007 — $1,560,389) was incurred on the Sleeper
Gold property. Additionally, $3,455 (2007 -~ $9,157) was spent on-the Mill Creek Property. The
Company further incurred costs of $3,455 (2007 — $25,822) on the Reese River Property. The
Company incurred no costs for the Spnng Valley Area Claims (2007 - $5 558)

Commitments i

Office Lease

The Company Ieases ofF ice space in Nevada. The lease agreement for this office space expires
in November 2008 and will be renewed. The Nevada office Iease requires the Company to pay
$18,000 annually as its share of base rent.

Management-Agreements: e R

The Company has entered into a five year Employment Agreement dated September 1, 2004
whereby it will pay an admrnlstratwe manager $72,000 per annumi. Currently, by mutual
agreement between the pames 'the employee is receiving $36,000 per annum as payment in full
for services provided: ‘Should-the Company terminate the agreement: or should the Company’
have an effectlve change of. control |t wrll be Irable fof payment of one year s salary at the fuII rate
of $72, 000 SR : e v

LR PR C o . '

The Company has an employment contract with its President. Under the terms of that contract;
remuneration is reviewable on October 1 of each year, when such remuneration may be
increased, but not decreased. The remuneration for the President is $160,000 per annum.
Additionally, the contract provtdes that, in the evert of termination by the Company, the President
shall receive three times the, annual amount of salary in the year of termination  plus US $150, 000.

The Company entered into an employment contract with an officer of the Company effective April
1, 2007 whereby it will pay the officer $66, 600 per. annum Under the terms. of the contract,
remuneration is reviewable on April 1 of each year, when such remuneration may.be increased,
but not decreased. The contract provides that, in the event of termination by the Company, the
officer shall receive two times the annual amount of salary in the year of termination.

Net Smelter Return Royalty
The Ken Snyder Gold Syndicate holds a 1% Net Smelter Production Royalty on the Sleeper Gold

Property. Dr. Snyder retains 1% NSR on the WR claims in the Spring Valley Area (this royalty is
separate and unrelated to the syndicate which has 1% NSR at Sleeper).

Management Discussion and Analysis ) . MD&A Page 9
{for the three months ended June 30, 2008) '



Related Party Transactions

The Company paid no legal fees and expenses (2007 - $8,864) to a law firm in which a director of
the Company is a partner; $nil (2007 - $nil) is included in accounts payable. The Company paid
an aggregate of $16,500 {2007 - $18,853} in consulting fees to a director and officer of the
Company, all of which (2007 - $nil} is included in accounts payable. The Company paid salaries
of $40,000 (2007 - $40,000) to a director and officer of the Company and $9,000 (2007 - $9,000)
to a party related to a director and officer of the Company. As at June 30, 2008, $10,934 (2007 -
$10,487) was due from a director and officer of the Company with respect to fravel advances, and
is included in receivables and prepayments.

The above transactions and balances are in the nor_mél course of operations and are measured
at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the
related parties. o

Critical Accounﬁhg Estimates and Significant Accounting Policies

For a detailed summary of the Company's significant accounting policies, the reader is directed to
Note 2 of the Notes to the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, March 31, 2008 and 2007,
available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Principles of Consoclidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and X-Cal U.S.A.
inc., its wholly-owned integrated subsidiary and its 100% interest in New Sleeper Gold LLC and
Sleeper Mining Company, LLC.

Mineral Properties .

X-Cal has adopted the policy of deferring acquisition and exploration costs relating to its mineral
property interests. The Company reviews the status of its mineral property interests on a regular
basis. Expenditures relating to properties, which have been abandoned or are considered
uneccnomic in the foreseeable future, are written off. Had the Company adopted a policy of
expensing all exploration costs in the period they were incurred, X-Cal's asset base,
shareholders’ equity, and loss for the year would be materially different.

When properties are acquired under agreements requiring future acquisition payments to be
made at the sole discretion of the Company, those future payments, whether in cash or shares,
are recorded only when the Company has made or becomes obligated to make the payment or
issue the shares.

When properties are sold under agreements requiring future purchase payments to be made at
the sole discretion of the purchaser, those future payments, whether in cash or shares, are
recorded only when the purchaser has made or becomes obligated to make the payment or to
issue the shares.

Reclamation and Environmental Costs

The Company is subject to the laws and regulations relating to environmental matters in
jurisdictions in which it operates, including those relating to property reclamation, discharge of
hazardous material and other matiers.” The Company may also be held liable should
environmental problems be discovered that were caused by former owners and operators of its
existing properties and properties in which it previously had an interest.
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The Company recognizes the fair value of its reclamation and environmental obligations in the
financial statements as a liability in the period in which the obligation is assumed on acquisition or
is incurred in exploration of properties. The fair value of the.liability is initially recorded at the
discounted value of expected future cash outlays to. satlsfy the obligations, with a corresponding
increase to mineral property mterests The liability is adjusted at the end of each period to reflect
changes in the present value of the estimated future cash outlays underlying the obligation. The
Company records that increase in the carrying amount of the obligation as accretion expense.

\

Stock-Based Compensation K
The Company accounts for stock-based compensation expense using the fair value based
method with respect to all stock-based payments to directors, employees, and non-employees,
including awards that are direct awards of stock and cal! for settlement in cash or other assels, or
stock appreciation rights that call for settlement by the issuance of equity instruments.. Under this
method, stock-based payments are recorded as an expense over the vesting period or when the
awards are granted, with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus under shareholders’
equity. When stock options are exercised, the corresponding fair value is transferred from
contributed surplus to capital stock. :

Financial Instruments y
The Company has various financial instruments including cash, deposits, receivables, and
payables and accruals. The carrying value of all financial instruments approximates their fair
values.

1. Fair value

The Company's financial instruments include cash and term deposits, receivables,
reclamation bond — commutation account, environmental bonds, and accounts payable
and accrued liabilities. Cash and term deposits are designated as held-for-trading;
receivable are designated as Ioans and receivables; reclamal!on bond - commutation
account’ and enwronmental bonds are classified as held- to -maturity; and accounls
payable and accruec I|ab|||t|es are classﬂ” ed as other fi nancnal I|abthnes

Prior to the adopllon of Section 385, the ° carrying values’ of cash and term deposits,

receivables, and accounts payables’ and accrued liabilities approximated their fair values

because of the short-term maturity of these financial instruments. The reclamation bond
_ approxumated its fair value as it eams interest at market rates.

tote . R . "

2. Interest rate risk

The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate price risk due'to the short-term
maturity of its monetary assets and liabilities.

3. Creditrisk

The Company's financial assets that are exposed to credit risk consist primarily of cash
and term deposits, and receivables. The Company’s cash and term deposits are held at
major Canadian and US financial institutions. The Company maintains provisions for
potential credit losses for its receivables, and any losses to date have been within
managemenl’'s expectations.
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4. Foreign currency risk

The Company incurs expenditures in both Canadian and US dollars and- obtains
financing in Canadian dollars. Therefore, the Company is exposed to foreign ‘currency
risk. The Company does not use derivative instruments to mitigate that risk.

5. Derivatives

The Company has obligations related to certain carried interest rights and net smelter
royalties, the value of which is derived from future events and commodity prices. These
rights are derivative instrumenis. However, the minerai interests to which they reiate are
not sufficiently developed to reasonably determine value.

Outlook .
Exploration Expenditures

The gold production industry continues to face the need for reserve replacement. The Company
has assembled and documented the Sleeper Gold Project over a period of years beginning with
the first land acquisitions in the area in December 1993. The Sieeper Joint Veniure, New Sleeper
Gold LLC {50% X-Cal/50% New Sleeper Gold Corporation} generated a large volume of new data
which has been incorporated into the overall picture at Sleeper.

X-Cat successfully acquired the 50% interest that New Sleeper Gold Corporation held. in the
Sleeper Joint Venture. The Company is now solely responsible for continued exploration of the
property and has assembled an experienced team of professionals to carry on current explaration
programs as recommended in the NI-43-101 Technical Report (March 2006). The Company
budgeted $1.3 million for implementation of its exploration program. The Company is continuing
to seek to raise additional financing to fund the recommendations in the NI-43-101 Technlcal
Report (March 2006).

The Mill Creek Gold Property is located in the Cortez Joint Venture Area of Nevada where Placer
Dome Inc. has announced new discoveries. The general area is now the subject of mcreased
exploration activity by several major and junior companies. :

As par of forward planning for the Mill Creek Property, X-Cal has received approval of a Plan of
Operations permit, which will allow for comprehensive drill testing of the property, The Plan of
Operations will facilitate continued exploration in the future.

The Reese River agreement between the Company and Placer Dome US (a subsidiary of Barrick
Gold) allows for work programs that are based on recommendations of a technical team
composed of both Placer Dome and the Company's personnel. The Dlecember 16, 2006 deadline
for the Company’s commitment to fund a US $200,000 drilling program was extended, by Placer
Dome, to March 16, 2007. X-Cal exceeded the required minimum in the agreement within the
time frame and notified Placer Dome that the expenditures have been made. Placer Dome’s
interest has now reverted 1o a 2% net smelter returns royalty.

X-Cal has staked thirty-eight lode mineral claims in the Spring Valley Area, Pershing County,
Nevada. Dr. Ken Snyder provided land research to the Company which facilitated the staking.
Dr. Snyder retains a 1% Net Smelter Return interest in the claims.
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Potential for Corporate Developments

The Company is continually evaluating potential transactions and corporate opportunities which
could improve the Company’s relative position, either.by exposing it to prospective new areas, or
by seeking alliances or partnershlps in order to. lnvestlgate its properties more cost effectively.
This could include the addition of new properties via acquisitions, mergers or joint ventures, or the
seeking out of corporate partners The company currently has several active data sharing
agreements in place, as per the above mentioned cbjectives.

Risks and Uncertainties A

Risks related to the Mmmg Exploratlon Industry Generally
The Company is a gold explorailon company and is exposed to a number of risks and
uncertainties that are common to other companies in the mineral exploration business. The
exploration for, and of, mineral deposits involves significant financial risks over an extended
pericd of time. There is no guarantee that even with careful geoclogical evaluation, experience
and knowledge that the Company will be successful in its search or that expenditure of funds will
result in the dlscovery of an economic m:neral deposnt :

Risk associated thh Mlneral Tenure Rrghts Cow
Although the Company has taken steps to verlfy title. to its mineral property |nterests in
accordance with industry standards, these procedures do not guarantee the Company's title.
Property title may be .subject .to unreglslered prlor agreements and non- comphance with
regulatory requirements. . S e o N

Uninsured Risks . Coa T R ‘ Lo

The Company .maintains insurance- to, protect it against certain .risks-related. to.,its current
cperations in amounts that it believes are reasonable depending upon the circumstances
surrounding each identified nsk. The Company may elect, however, not to insure against cerlain
risks due.to high -premiums .or- for varicus ‘other reasgns. --In the -course of, exploration,
development and production:of mineral properties, certain risks, and-in particular; unexpected or
unusual geological operating conditions, fire,. flooding and earthquakes .may occur. It is not
always possible to fully insure against such risks as a result of high premiums or other reasons.
Should such liabilities arise, there comd result mcreasmg costs and a declme in thé value of the
Company's securities:' -

Competition

| " . -
'I.; . ey . K

The Company competes’ with ‘other’ mining -companies that have substantlally greater financial
and technical resources for the acqursmon of mineral concessions, as well as for the recruitment
and retention of qualified employees conlractors and other advisors with technical skills and
experience in the mining industry. There can be no assurance that the Company wnII contmue to
attract and retain skilled employees, contractors and technical advisors.

Management

The Company currently has a small executwe managément group, which is ‘sufficient for its
present stage of development. The Company has rehed and will continue to rely, upon a number
of consultants and others for operating expertise. The Company's development to date has
largely depended and in the future will continue to depend upon the efforts of current executive
management. The loss of a member of this group could have a material adverse effect on the
Company.
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Requirement for Further Financing

The Company is dependent upon equity financing to continue to fund its exploration activities and
general operations. The Company’s funding needs may vary depending upon results obtained
from current exploration activities. The Company’s ability to raise future capital will be in part
affected by capital markets and market prices for gold. There is no assurance that such
additional financing will be available. ’

Outstanding Share Data as at June 30, 2008
The Company has unlimited share capital of common shares of no par value. Of this, the

Company had 136,926,323 shares outstanding as of June 30 or 155,583,823 shares on a fully
diluted basis. As at the date hereof, the total number of shares outstanding has not changed.

Date Type No. of Deemed or Issue | Gross Proceeds
shares Price per share to Company
March 31, 2008 | Opening balance 127,763,823
April 4, 2008 | Private Placement 1,100,000 | $ 0.15 $ 165,000
June 10, 2008 | Private Placement 8,062,500 | $ 0.08 $ 645,000
June 30, 2008 | Total 136,926,323

The Company had 400,000 stock options granted, and 215,000 expired or canceled during the
period. There are 10,295,000 stock options currently outstanding under the Company's incentive
stock option plan(s) with exercise prices ranging from $0.10 - $0.50 with expiry dates ranging to
March 23, 2012,

The Company had 8,362,500 warrants issued and outstanding as at June 30, 2008. The
exercise prices range from $0.10 - $0.24 with expiry dates ranging to June 10, 2009.

If the Company were to issue all 10,110,000 shares issuable upon exercise of all incentive stock
options outstanding, as well as all 8,362,500 shares issuable upon exercise of all warrants, it
would raise $4,295,500.

Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFQ) of X-Cal Resources Ltd. are
responsible for designing internal controls over financial reporting or causing them to be designed
under their supervision in order to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with Canadian GAAP. They have designed controls for this process and have
conducted an evaluation which has identified certain weaknesses in the controls. Due to the
limited number of staff at the Company, there is a potential weakness in the system of intemal
controls due to the Company's inability to achieve total appropriate segregation of duties. In
order to reduce this risk, additional contracted professionals are used on a regular basis by the
Company. These additional contractors possess technical knowledge in the areas of accounting,
legal, and Canadian/US taxalion. These additional resources of the Company also increase the
likelihood that complex and non-routine accounting transactions will be identified and recorded in
accordance with Canadian GAAP. While Management and the Board of Directors out-source
technical expertise where necessary to mitigate the risk of material misstatement, the Company
does not have total assurance that this risk can be reduced to a remote likelihood of a material
misstatement. The Company continuously reviews and evaluates its processes to further
strengthen its system of internal controls. The Company believes that an adequate control
environment exists at this time.
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There were no significant changes in the Company's intemnal controls or, to the knowledge of
management, in other factors that could significantly affect the disclosure controls and
procedures subsequent to the date that this evaluation was carried out.

Multilateral Instrument 52-109 Disclos ufe

Disclosure controls and procedures have been designed to ensure the accuracy and timely filing
of periodic financial reports as well as the disclosure of material information in accordance with
secunties regulations. Responsibilities for preparing, reviewing in advance, and releasing
periodic reports, press releases and proxy statements have been assigned to members of the
audit committee, Board of Directors, the comptroller, staff and_other qualified persons. The
Company has set out general disclosure guidelines dealing with the determination of material
information and circumstances when assistance from outside legal counsel is required.

Items Subsequent to Period-End
There were no subsequent events to report.

Additional Iriformation - - o

Additional information regarding X-Cal is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Management Discussion and Analysis . ) MD&A Page 15
(for the three months ended June 30, 2008)



X-Cal Resources Ltd.

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

For the period ended June 30, 2008

s
(p.llv

N S T op
ORI PR

P.O. Box 48479 Bentall Centre
Vancouver, BC V7X 1A0
Tel: (604) 662-8245
Fax: (604)688-7740

email: invrel@x-cal.com
Website: www.x-cal.com

Qxdznudd



X-CAL RESOURCES LTD.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

John M. Arnold
Wiilliam E. Bateman
Shawn M. Kennedy

Derek Bartlett

Robert Preston

Larry Kornze

AUDITORS

Smythe Ratcliffe LLP, Vancouver, British Columbia

SHARES LISTED

The Toronto Stock E.xchange

TRANSFER AGENT

Computershare Investor Services Inc., Toronto, Canada

CORPORATE ADDRESS

PO Box 48479 Bentall Centre
Vancouver, BC V7X 1A0
Tel: 604-662-8245
Fax: 604-688-7740
email: invrel@x-cal.com
Website: www.x-cal.com




MANAGEMENT’'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

+

The consolidated financial statements of X-Cal Resources Ltd. are the responsibility of the
Company's management. The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and reflect management’s best estimates and
judgment based on information currently available.

Management has developed and maintains a"system of internal controls to ensure that the
Company's assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorized and properly recorded and
financial information is reliable. .

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring- management fulfills its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal control through an audit committee, which is comprised entirely of
non-management directers. The Audit Committee reviews the results of the audit and the annual
consolidated financial statements prior to their submission to the Board of Directors for approvat.

These consolidated financial slatements have not been. audited by Smythe Raicliffe LLP,
Chartered Accountants. ’

“Shawn Kennedy”

Shawn Kennedy
President

Vancouver, British Columbia
August 1, 2008



X-Cal Resources Ltd. : c
Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2008

March 31, 2008

{unaudited) {audited)
Assets
Current
Cash and term deposits $ 305,135 § 148,686
Receivables and prepayments 204,584 267,995
Marketable securities 6,823 -
516,542 416,681
Prepaid insurance (Note 4) 1,636,868 1,699,278
Reclamation bond — commutation account (Note 4) 3,209,662 3,235,288
Environmental bonds 36,455 36,598
Mineral property interests (Note 5} 30,979,300 30,575,414
Property and equipment (Note 6) 59,841 66,594
A 35,922,126 35,613,172
$ 36,438,668 $ 36,029,853
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payables and accrued liabilities $ 293,792 ¢ 391,424
Reclamation and environmental obligations (Note 7) 768,412 744,222
1,062,204 1,135,646
Shareholders’ Equity
, Capital stock (Note 8) . 48,918,247 48,109,247
Subscriptions received in advance - 165,000
Contributed surplus 3,488,109 3,462,701
Deficit ! {17,030,892) (16.842,741)
35,376,464 34,894,207
$ 36,438,668 % 36,029,853

Commitments {Note 12)
Subsequent Evenls (Note 14)

{See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements)
On behalf of board:

“Shawn Kennedy” “John Arnold”

Shawn Kennedy, Director

John Arnold, Director



X-Cal Resources Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Deficit .

(unaudited)

Three months ended

June 30, 2008

Three months ended

June 30, 2007

General and administrative expenses
Accounting and audit nie
Amortization b
Equipment commlssmnmg and testmg
Insurance. S
Investor refations )
Legal .

Office and other

Regulatory fees

Rent

Salaries, consultants’ and d|reclors fees

Shareholder communications
Stock-based compensation (Note Bd)
Telecommunications o
Travel -l

Loss before other items

Other

Accretion expense

Foreign exchange gain (loss) (Note 13)
Gain on sale of property and equxpment
Interest and other income

Sale of mineral property interest

Gain on sale of net smelter royalty..

Net income (loss) . N

Deficit, beginning of period _._ .

Deficit, end of period

Income (loss) per share

Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding

14,500 §$ 12,500

. 5,306 5,901
- 50,000

70,817 74,609

- 28,865

13,693 19,834

. 8,966. 9,414
20,326 14,271
11,574 6,547
34,027 . 44,319
'2.840 14,866
7,456 142,014
1,206 1,884
9,857 52,035
200,748 477,059
(200,748) © (477,059)
_{(28,191) (27,351)
" (137) 4,574
5,143 )
31,782 43,455

- 1,501,740

12,507 1,612,418
(188,151) 1,135,359
(16,842,741) (16,884,926)
(17,030,892) $ (15,749,567)
(001) $ 009
130,618,823 124,146,683

{See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements}



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(unaudited) :
Three months ended Three months ended
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
Cash derived from (applied to)
Operating ‘ ;
Net income (loss) $ (188,151} % 1,135,359
Stock-based compensation 7.456 142,014
Amortization 5,396 5,901
Accretion expense 24,191 27,351
Changes in non-cash working capital items:
Receivables and prepayments,
accounts payables and accrued liabilities (38,294) (217,133)
' {189,402} 1,593,492
Financing :
Shares issued for cash, net of issuance costs and
subscriptions received in advance 645,000 150,000
645,000 150,000
Investing
" Mineral property expenditures (333,471) (1,533,447)
Proceeds from sate of property and equipment 37,072 . 350,000
{296,399) (1,183,447)
Net increase in cash - . 159,199 60,045
Cash and term deposits
Beginning of period 145,936 1,867,650
End of period $ 305,135 $ 1,927,695
Non-cash investing and financing activities
Stock-based compensation capitalized in mineral
property interests $ 17,052 % -
Property acquisition $ - 13,500

(See accompanying noles to consolidated financial statements)



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Eqmty

Number - Capital Subscriptions Contributed Accumulated
of Shares " Stock Received.in Surplus Deficit Total
Advance

Balance: March 31, 2007 123,685,255 47,234,247 - 3,169,750 (16,884,926) 33,519,071
Issuance of shares for
cash — privale placement 3,028,568 540,000 165,000 - - 705,000
Share issuance costs - (28,500) - - - {28,500)
Equipment acquisition 1,000,000 350,000 - - - 350,000
Property acquisition 50,000 13,500 - L - : ' - 13,500
Stock-based compensation - - - R 292,951 " - 292,951
Net loss for the year - - - - 42,185 42,185
Balance: March 31, 2008 127,763,823 § 48,109,247 § 165,000 $ 3462701 $ (16,842,741) 34,894,207
issuance of shares for ]
cash - private placement 9,162,500 810,000 (165,000). - . - 645,000
Shara issuance costs - - . z . . .
Equipment acquisition - . - - - - -
Property acquisition - - - - - -
Stock-based compensation - - - 25,408 . - 25,408
Net income for the period - - - - 0 (188,151) {188,151)
Balance: June 30, 2008 136,926,323 $ 48,919,247 § - & 35,376,464

3,488,109 § (17.030.892)
{See accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements) o



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

1. Description of Business and Nature of Operations

X-Cal Resources Ltd. (the “Company”) is engaged in the exploration of its mineral property
interests and has not determined whether its properties contain reserves that are economically
recoverable. The business of exploring for resources involves a high degree of risk. Few
properties that are explored ultimately are developed into producing mines. - Major expenses may
be required to establish ore reserves, develop metallurgical processes, and construct mining and
processing facilities at a particular site. There is no assurance that the Company will be
successful in its search. :

These financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (Canadian GAAP} on a going-concemn basis. This presumes funds will be
available to finance on-going development, operations and capital expenditures, and the
realization of assets and the payment of liabilities in the normal course of operations for the
foreseeable future. These financial statements do not give effect.to adjustments that would be
necessary to the carrying values and classifications of assets and Iuabnlmes should the Company
be unable to continue as a going-concern.

The recovery of the amount recorded for mineral property interests is dependent upon the ability
of the Company to locate economically recoverable reserves, obtain the financing necessary to
complete exploration and development of the propemes future mineral prices, and upon future
profitable production. : ‘

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian GAAP using the following significant accounting policies’ and are expressed in
Canadian dollars.

a) Basis of presentation and principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and X-Cal U.S.A.
Inc., its wholly-owned integrated subsidiary, and its 100% interest in New Sleeper Gold LLC and
Sleeper Mining Company, LLC. Certain of the comparative figures are reclassified to conform to
the current year's presentation. -

b) Use of estimates and measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statéments in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Significant areas requiring the use of estimates include rates for amortization,
accretion expense on reclamation and environmental obligations, impairment of mineral property
interests, balances of accounts payable and accrued liabilities, reclamation and environmental
obligation, vatuation allowance for future tax assets, and the calculation of stock-based
compensation expense. While management believes the estimates are reasonable, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

c) Revenue recognition
Interest income is accrued as eamed on the term deposits at the stated rate over the term to

maturity. The Company recognizes income on the sale of assets in accordance with sales
agreements.




X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the three months ended June '30,.2008 and 2007

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
d) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated by the temporal method whereby monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange in effect at the batance sheet date; non-
monetary assets are translated at rates prevailing when acquired; and revenues and expenses
are translated at the exchange rate in effect on the dates they occur. Translation gains and losses
are included in the results of operations for the year.

e) Cash and cash equivalents

In accordance with generally accepted' éccounting princibles, the Qémpany classifies highly liquid
short-term investments that are readily convertible into kngwn, amounts of cash and have
maturities of 90 days or less from the date of acquisition as cash equivalents.

f) Mineral propérty interests

Mineral property interests represent acquisition, holding and exploration, costs, less amounts
recovered, written off or written down to date. If production is attained, these costs will be
amortized using the unit-of-production method based on estimated reserves. Costs related to
properties that are abandoned or considered uneconomic in the foreseeable future are written off.

When properties are acquired by the Company under agreements requiring. future acquisition
payments to be made at the sole discretion of the Company, those future payments, whether in
cash or shares, are recorded onfy when the Company has made or becomes obllged to make the
payment or to issue the shares. e o e

When properties are sold by the Company under agreements requiring future purchase payments
to be made at the sole discretion of.the purchaser, those future payments, whether in cash or
shares, are recorded only when the purchaser has made or becomes obliged to make the
payment or to issue the shares. e e . .

All deferred mineral property expenditures are reviewed annually, on a property-by-property
basis, to consider whether there are any conditions that may indicate impairment. ‘When the
carrying value of a property exceeds its net recoverable amount that may be estimated by
quantifiable evidence of an economic. geclogical resource or reserve, mineral expenditure
commitments or the Company's assessment of its ability to sell the property for an amount
exceeding the deferred costs, provision is.made for the impairment in value.



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the three months ended June 39, 2008 and 2007

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd) 9
g) Reclamation and environmental costs

The Company is subject to the laws and regulations relating to environmental matters in
jurisdictions in which it operates, including those relating to property reclamation, discharge of
hazardous material. and other matters. The Company may also be held liable should
environmental problems be discovered that were caused by former owners and operators of its
existing properties and properties in which it previously had an interest.

The Company recognizes the fair value of its reclamation and environmental obligations in the
financial statements as a liability in the year in which the obligation is assumed on acquisition or
is incurred in exploration of properties. The fair value of the liability is initially recorded at the
discounted value of expected future cash outlays to satisfy the obligations, with a corresponding
increase to mineral property interests. The liability is adjusted at the end of each year to reflect
changes in the present value of the estimated future cash outlays underlying the obligation. The
Company records that increase in the carrying amount of the obligation as accretion expense.

h) . . - Property and equipmentv

Property and equipment are recorded at cost tess accumulated amortization. All property and
equrpment |s amortlzed on the straight-line method over five years.

i} ' Capital stock issued for other than cash

Capital stock issued for other than cash is valued al the price at which the stock traded on the
principal stock ‘exchange on which the stock trades at the time the related agreement to issue
stock is made or, if such issuance is at the option of the Company, at the time the Company
determines to issue such stock.

i) Stock-based compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation expense using the fair value based
method with respect to all stock-pased payments to directors, employees and non-employees,
inctuding awards that are direct awards of stock and call for settlement in cash or other assets, or
stock appreciation nghts that call for settlement by the issuance of equity instruments. Under this
method, stock-based payments are recorded as an expense over the vesting period or when the
awards are granted, with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus under shareholders’
equity. When stock options are exercised, the corresponding fair value is transferred from
contributed surplus to capital stock.

k) Income taxes

The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this
method future income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax basis, and losses carried forward. Future income tax assets
and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect on future income tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
operations in the year in which the change is enacted or substantially assumed. The amount of
future income tax asset is limited to the amount of the benefit that is more tikely than not to be
realized.

10




X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the three months ended June:30,-2008-and 2007

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: {cont'd) -

)] Income {loss) per share S

Income {loss) per share is determined by.dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average
number of common shares dutstanding” during the year. The Company uses the treasury stock
method to determine the dilutive effect of -stock ‘options. This method assumes that proceeds
received from the exercise of stock options and warrants are used to-repurchase common shares
at the average market price ‘during the .year. No exercise or conversion is assumed during the
years in which a net loss is mcurred as the effect |s antl-dllutlve

-

m) Change in Accountmg Pohmes ' :r-: 1

Effective April 1, 2007, the Company adopted'the,fo!lowing new accounting standards issued by
the. Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants ("CICA”) relating to financial instruments. The
adoption of these new accountlng p0|lCIeS had no rmpact on the’Company s openmg equnty

i} Comprehenswe lncome

Comprehensive income is the overall change in the net assets of the Company for a period,
other than changes attributable to transactions with shareholders. It is made up of net income
and other comprehensive incomé. The historical make up of net income has not .changed.
Other comprehensive income includes:gains or losses, which generally accepted- accounting
principles requires to be recognized in a period but excluded from net income for that period.

ii) Financial Instruments — Recognition and-Measurement ‘

This standard sets . out the criteria for, the’ recognition and measurement of fi nancial
instruments for fi scal years beginning on of after October 1, 2006. This standard requlres all
financial statements within its scope, |nclud|ng derivatives, to be. included. on a Company's
balance sheet and measured either at fair value or, in certain circumstances when fair value
may not be considered most relevant, at cost or amortized cost. Changes in falr.value are to
be recognlzed in the statements of operations and comprehenswe income.

Financial assets and habllltles are recognlzed when, the Company becomes party to the
contract creatmg ‘the item. Any of the Company s outstanding financial assets and liabilities
at the effectlve date of adoption, are recogmzed and measured in accordance with the new
reqmrements as if these requnrements had always been in effect. There were no changes to
the fair values of assets and Ilabllmes brlpr to April 1, 2007 recognized by adjusting opemng
deficit or openlng accumulated other comprehenswe income..

All financial instruments are to be classified into one of the following five categories; held-for-
trading, held-to-maturity, lcans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or other
financial liabilities. Initial and subsequent measurement and recognition of changes in the
value of financial instruments depends.on their initial classification:

i Held-to-matunty investments,’ loans and receivables, and other financial liabifities are
inittally measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amorized. cost.
Amortization of premiums or discounts and losses due to impairment are included in
current year net income or loss. .

ii. Available-for-sale ﬂnanczal assets are measured at fair value. Revaluation gains and
losses are included in other comprehensive income until the asset is removed from the

. batance sheet. '

iii. .Held-for-trading financial.instruments’ are measured at fair value. All gains and losses

are included in net income or loss in the year they arise.

1



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the three months ended June 39, 2008 and 2007

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {cont'd)
n. Change in Accounting Policies

Marketable securities are designated by the Company as financial instruments held for trading
and are carried at market value. Purchases and sales of the marketable securities are accounted
for at the settlement date.

o..- Future Accounting Changes

The CICA has issued the following new Handbook sections that will become effective on April 1,
2008 for the Company: N :

* Section 3862, “Financial Instruments - Disclosures”

= Section 3863, “Financial Instruments - Presentation”

» Section 1535, “Capital Disclosures”

» Section 1400, “Going Concern”

CICA Handbook Section 3862 modifies the disclosure requirements for Section 3861, “Financial
Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation®, including required disclosure for the assessment of
the significance of financial instruments for an entity's financial position and performance, and of
the extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the Company is exposed and how
the Company manages those risks.

Secticn 3863 carries forward the presentation requirements of Section 3861. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of these new sections.

CICA Handbook Section 1535 establishes standards for disclesing information about an entity's
capital and how it is managed. The entity's disciosure should include information about its
objectives, policies and procedures for managing capital and disclose whether it has complied
with any capital requirements to which it is subject and the consequences of non-compliance. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of adoption of this new section.

CICA Handbook Section 1400 requires management to make an assessment of a company's
ability to continue as a going concem. When financial statements are not prepared on a going
concern basis that fact shall be disclosed together with the basis on which the financial
statements are prepared and the reason why the company is not considered a going concern.
The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of this new section on its financial
statements. . .

These new accounting pronouncements currently have no impact on the consclidated financial
statements of the Company.

In 2006, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board {"AcSB") published a new strategic plan that
will significantly affect financial reporting requirements for Canadian companies. The AcSB
strategic plan outlines the convergence of Canadian GAAP with IFRS over an expected five year
transitional period. In February 2008, the AcSB announced that 2011 is the changeover date for
publicly-listed companies to use IFRS, replacing Canada's own GAAP. The date is for interim and
annual financiat statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after fanuary 1, 2011. The
transition date of January 1, 2011 will require the restatement for comparative purposes of
amounts reported by the Company for the year ended December 31, 2010 and earlier where
applicable. While the Company has begun assessing the adoption of IFRS for 2011, the financial
reporting impact of the transition to IFRS cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

12



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Finanoial‘Sta'tements
For the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

3. Financial instruments
a) Fair value

The Company's financial instruments include cash and term deposits, receivables, reclamation
bond — commutation account, environmental bonds, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
Cash and term deposits are designated as held-for-trading; receivables are designated as loans
and receivables; reclamation bond — commutation account and environmental bonds are
classified as held-to-maturity; and accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as other
financial liabilities.

Prior to the adoption of Section 3855, the carrying values of cash and term deposits, receivables,
and accounts payables and accrued fiabilities approximated their fair'values because of the short-
term maturity of these financial instruments. The reclamation-bond approxlmated its fair value as
it earned interest at market rates.

b} Interest rate risk

The Company is not exposed to s:gmf icant interest rate pnoe nsk due to the short-term matunty of
its monetary assets and liabilities.

c) Creditrisk

The Company’s financial assets that are exposed to credit risk- consist primarily of cash and term
deposits and receivables. The Company’s cash and term déposits are held at major Canadian
and US financial institutions. The Company maintains provisions for potential credit !osses for its
receivables, and any losses to date have been within management s expeclatlons '

d}  Foreign currency rlsk oo
The Company incurs expend:tures in both Canadlan ‘and US doilars and obtalns financing in
Canadian doflars, Therefore, the Company is exposed to forelgn currency nsk The Company
does not use denvatlve |nstrumenls to mmgate that nsk

P _ 3. ,

4, Prepald Insurance and Reclamatlon Bond Commutatlon Account

In 2004, New Sleeper Gold LLC entered into an insurance-backed financial assurance program
including a mine reclamation policy and a polfution legal liability policy for the Sleeper Gold
Project. As part of the policy, New Sleeper Gold LLC paid an insurance premium and put funds
in a commutation-account used to reimburse reclamation costs and indemnity claims paid by New
Sleeper Gold LLC.

The insurance policy covers reclamation costs in the event New Sleeper Gold LLC defauits on
payment of its reclamation costs up to an aggregate of US $25 million. The insurance premium is
being amortized over ten years and the prepaid insurance balance at June 30, 2008 is
$1,636,868 (2007 - $1,866,508). The commutation account earns interest at an annual effective
rate equal to the one-year constant maturity treasury rate prevailing -on the first day of each
anniversary year. The balance in the commutallon account at June 30, 2008 is $3,209,662 (2007
- $3,681,645).

13



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

5. Mineral Property Interests

Nevada, USA: June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
Sleeper Gold Project $ 28,061,278 § 25,820,426
Mill Claims o 2,475,756 2,457,472
Reese River B 422,023 . 401,922
Spring Valley 20,242 20,039

$ 30,879,300 % 28,699,859

Sleeper Gold Project

From Decernber 1993 to December 2003, the Company acquired rights to explore and develop
the Sleeper Goid Project properties. Also, the Company had an option to purchase the 50%
interest of a jomt venture partner.

In January'2004, the Company purchased the interest of the former joint venture pariner, Kinross’
Gold Corporation, and formed a new joint venture {New Sleeper Gold LLC) with New Sleeper
Gold Corporation to finance exploratlon of the property. Certain terms of the new joint venture
are set out below:

New Sleeper Gold Corporation contributed US $20,000,000 in cash to the joint venture.

The Company contributed its interest in the Sleeper Gold Project to the joint venture.

The 'US‘$2(_),00£J,000 cash contribution by New Sieepgr‘ Gold Corparation was applied to:

i) US $4,000,000 to exercise the option-to purchase the Kinross Gold interest
in the properties;

i) US $8,000,000 to fund a reclamataon and pollution legal liability insurance
policy and a réclamation reserve of which US $5,300,000 was expended by
. March 31, 2004; the remaining US $2,700,000 was released subsequently

and made available for exploration and general operating purposes; and

iii) US $8,000,000 for exploration and general operating purposes.

The Company acquired the remaining 50% interest in the New Sleeper Gold LLC joint venture on
May 186, 2006 by a cash payment of $5,000,000 and the issue of 10,000,000 shares of its
common stock at a market value of $0.32 per share, representing an aggregate of $8,200,000
paid to New Sleeper Gold Corporation. The Company now owns 100% of New Sleeper Gold
LLC. - ’

In December 2008, the Company acquired title to previously leased mineral claims (part of the
Sleeper Goid Project) for US $750,000 (US $300,000 paid to date} plus 250,000 shares (100,000
issued 1o date).

Payment can be made as four equal payments over four years or accelerated at the Company’s
discretion. The mineral claims are lodged as security against future payments. As at June 30,
2008, the remaining balance to complete this buyout is US$450,000 (2007 - US $600,000) and
150,000 (2007 — 200,000) common shares of the Company.

The Company has completed the sale of a 1% net smelter production royalty on the Sleeper Gold
Property to the Ken Snyder Gold Syndicate for $1,591,740 (US $1,500,000).

14



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the three months ended Juné:30,:2008 and 2007

5. Mineral Property Interests {cont’'d} :
Miil Claims

The Mill Creek Gold Property is owned 100% by the Company. The property, located in Lander
County, Nevada, is an early stage (grass roots) gold project. A US $1,600,000 exploration work
program that included drilling, mapping, sampling and geophysics has been completed by the
Company on the Property.

The Company has completed an extensive permitting process for the Mill Creek {Goat Window)
Property, which has resulted in approval of a Plan of Operations Permit.

Reese River

On December 12, 2005, the Company entered into a formal agreement with Placer Dome U.S.
Inc. (“Placer Dome’) a subsidiary of Barrick Gold U.S. Inc. (*Barrick Gold™), to jointly explore three
claim blocks in the Reese River Pediment, totaling 3,000 acres located in Lander County,
Nevada. Title of the claims has been transferred from Placer Dome to the Company. The
Company has carried out a US $200,000 drilling program developed by both padies. The
Company's expenditures for the above work exceeds the minimum required, and within the time
allotted under the agreement. Placer Dome’s interest (now owned by Barrick Gold) has now
reverted to a 2% net smelter returns royalty.

Spring Valley

The Company has staked thirty-eight claims totaling 760 acres located in the Spring Valley area,
Pershing County, Nevada. The Company granted a 1% net smelter productlon royalty on this
property to a consultant to the Company.

Title to Mineral Properties

Although the Company has taken steps to verify the title to mlnerai propertles in which it has an
interest in accordance with’industry slandards for the current stage of exploration of such
properties, these procedures do not guarantee the Company’s title. Property title may be subject
to unregistered prior agreements or transfers and title may be affected by undetected defects.

Realization of Assets

The investment in expenditures on mineral property interests comprises a significant portion of
the Company's assets. Realization of the Company’s investment in these assets is dependent
upon the establishment of legal ownership, the obtaining of permits, the satisfaction of
governmental requirements and possible aboriginal rights, and the attainment of successful
production from the properties or from the proceeds of their disposition.

Mineral exploration and development is highly speculative and involves inherent risks. While
rewards if a feasible ore body is discovered might be substantial, few properties that are explored
are ultimately development into producing mines. There can be no assurance that the current
exploration programs by the Company will result in the discovery of economically wable quantities
of ore.

15



X-Cal Resources Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the three months ended June 32, 2008 and 2007

6. Property and Equipment

June 30, 2008

Vehicles
Office equipment
Leasehold improvements

June 30, 2007

Vehicles
Office equipment
Leasehold improvements

$

Accumulated Net

Cost Amortization Book Value
109,697 70,857 38,840
114,787 93,077 20,810
18,650 18,459 191
243,134 183,293 59,841
Accumnulated Net

Cost- Amortization Book Value
109,697 57,536 52,161
108,128 83,937 24,191
18,650 18,046 604
236,474 159,519 76,956

7. Reclamation and Environmental Obligations

Subject to the laws and regulations relating 1o environmental matters, the Company may be held

liable for future site restoration costs.

As‘at June 30, 2008, the following information was assumed in measuring the reclamation and

environmental obligation:

Undiscounted amount required

{US $4,056,500)
Expected timing of payments

Average credit-adjusted risk-free rate

Inflation factor -

$

2008

4,163,997 . %

2009 - 2053
11.00%-

2.0%

2007

4,676,739

2008 - 2053

11.00%
2.0%

The commutation account (Note 4} is used to reimburse reclamation costs.and indemnity claims

paid by the Company.

The following table presents the reconciliation of the liability for the asset retirement obligation:

Balance, beginning of year
Accretion expense

June 30, June 30,

2008 2007

$ 744222 % 882,860
24,190 27,351

$ 768412 § 910,211
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the three months ended:Juné&:30;:2008 and 2007

8. Capital Stock and Contributed Surplus

a) Authorized
Unlimited common shares without par value.

b) Stock options

The Company has a 10% rolling stock option plan under which directors,- officers and other key
employees and consultants to the Company and its subsidiary may be granted options to
purchase shares. The number of common shares subject to options granted under the plan is
5% of the issued capital at thé date of the grant with respect to any one optionee, not to exceed

10% of the issued and outstanding common shares of the Company in aggregate. Options
issued under the plan may be exermsed dunng a period determined by the board of directors,

which cannot exceed five years.

. -+ June 30, 2008

L Weighted

Number of Average
Shares Exercise Price

Qutstanding, beginning of

June 30, 2007

N.um ber 6f

Weighted

Average

Shares Exercise Price

period 10,110,000 Y $0.34 8,960,000 " %036
Granted 400,000 $015 750,000 $0.35
Expired ' (200,000 $045 ' - (210,000) ©$0.34
Forfeited {15,000) $0.20 e -
Qutstanding, end of period 10,295,000 . $0.33 9,500,000 .$0.36

The optlions granted during the pericd have an immediate vesting term. As ait June 30, 2008, the
Company had stock options outstanding and exercisable, enabllng the holders to acquire

commeon shares as follows:

Number of Shares Exercise Price

75,000 $0.35°
1,325,000 » $0.33
775,000 $0.35

-.20,000: - " $0.35
640,000 $0.50
390,000 $0.20
20,000 . - §$0.20
150,000 $0.35
200,000 $0.20
200,000 $0.10
750,000 $0.35
600,000 - $0.20
1,200,000 $0.33
1,700,000 $035
2,250,000 $0.35

10,295,000
17
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- December 1, 2008

February 16, 2009
May 31, 2009

" July 28, 2009

December 13, 2009
January 17, 2010
February 28, 2010
March 23, 2010
April 1, 2010

May 26, 2010

June 12, 2010
September 24, 2010
February 16, 2011
May 31, 2011
March 23, 2012



X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

8. Capital Stock and Contributed Surplus (cont’'d)

c) Warrants
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
Weighted: .- : : Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average

Shares Exercise Price

Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding, beginning of

period - - -
Issued 8,362,500 $ 0.1 -
Expired - - -
Forfeited : - - -
Qutstanding, end of period 8,362,500 $0.11 -

The warrants issued during the period have an immediate vesting term. As at June 30, 2008, the
Company had warrants outstanding and exercisable, enabling the holders to acquire common
shares as follows: T

Number of Shares Exercise Price Expiry Date
. 300,000 $0.24 April 4, 2009
8,062,500 $0.10 June 10, 2009
8,362,500
d} Stock-based compensation

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing modet to estimate the value of the options at
each grant date using the following weighted average assumptions for the three months ended
June 30, 2008 and 2007:

[

2008 2007

Risk-free rate of return 3.33% 4.74%
- Expected dividend yield ' - .
Expected stock price volatility ' 117% 79%
Expected option life in years 2.0 3.0

Option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected
price volatility. Changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value
estimate. ' :

During the three months ended June 30, 2008, the compensation cost of stock options granted
was $25,408 ($0.06 per share), $7,456 of which was expensed and $17,952 was capitalized to
mineral properties. Stock-based compensation attributable to employees and consultants was -
$25,408, and to directers - $nil.

During the three months ended June 30, 2007, the compensation cost of stock options granted

was $142,014, all of which was expensed. Stock-based compensation attributable to directors
was - $nil, and to employees and consultants - $142,014.
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the three months ended Jun&i30, 2008 and 2007 -

8. Capita! Stock and Contributed Surplus (cont’d)

e) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding. The dilutive effect of potential common shares: cutstanding is included in diluted net

- earnings per share. The computations of basic net income (loss) per share and diluted net

income (loss) per share for June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

. 2008 2007

Net income (loss) from operations $ (188,151) $ 1,135,359
Basic weighted average shares . 130,618,823 124,146,683
Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options and warrants 18,657,500 . . 9,500,000
Dilutive potential common shares 149,276,323 ' 133,646,683
Earnings per share AT

Basic . , $ (0.001) $. 0.009

Diluted $ (0.001) - $. . 0.008

9. Related Party Transactions

The Company paid no legal fees and expenses (2007 - $8,864) to a law firm in which a director of
the Company is a pariner., The Company paid.an aggregate of $16,500 (2007 - $18,853) in
consulting fees to a director and. officer of the Company, all of which {2007 - $nil) is included in-
accounts payable. The Company paid salaries of $40,000 (2007 - $40,000) to a director and
officer of the Company and $9,000 (2007 - $9,000) to a party related to a director and officer of
the Company. As at June 30, 2008, $10,934 (2007 - $10,487) was due from a director and officer
of the Company with respect to travel advances, and is included in receivables and prepayments.

The above transactions and batances are in the normal course of operatio_ﬁé afxd are measured
at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed-to by the
related parties. .

10. INCOME TAX

The net future tax asset resulting from these items has not been recognized, as realization is not
considered more likely than not.
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X-Cal Resources Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

11. Segmented Information

The Company operates in one industry segment, the mineral resource industry, and in two
geographical segments, Canada and the United States. All current exploration activities are
conducted in Nevada, US. The net loss and assets identifiable within those geographic areas are

as follows:

2008 2007
Net income {loss}
Canada $ (161,820) 1,267,841
USA (26,331) {132,482)
$ (188,151) 1,135,359
Assets
Canada § 519,093 2,395,844
USA 35,919,575 34,376,949
$ 36,438,668 36,772,793

12. Commitments
a) Office leases

The Company leases office space in Nevada. The lease agreement for this office space expires
in November 2008 and will be renewed. The Nevada office lease requires the Company to pay
$18,000 annually as its share of base rent.

b} Management agreements

The Company has entered into a five year Employment Agreement dated September 1, 2004
whereby it will pay an administrative manager $72,000 per annum. Currently, by mutual
agreement between the parties, the employee is receiving $36,000 per annum as payment in full
for services provided. Should the Company terminate the agreement or should the Company
have an effective change of control, it will be liable for payment of one year's salary at the full rate
of $72,000.

The Company has an employment contract with its' President. Under the terms of that contract,
remuneration is reviewable on October 1 of each year, when such remuneration may be
increased, but not decreased. The remuneration for the President is $160,000 per annum.
Additionaily, the contract provides that, in the event of termination by the Company, the President
shall receive three times the annual amount of salary in the year of termination plus US $150,000.

The Company entered inte an employment contract with an officer of the Company effective April
1, 2007 whereby it will pay the officer $66,000 per annum. Under the terms of the contract,
remuneration is reviewable on April 1 of each year, when such remuneration may be increased,

but not decreased. The contract provides that, in the event of termination by the Company, the
officer shaf! receive two times the annual amount of salary in the year of termination,

13. Subsequent Events

There were no subsequent events to report.
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